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1. INTRODUCTION

More than 15 years have passed since the Japanese, with unparalleled
good luck, gocd luck that now seems astounding, and with & degree of
skill unanvicipated by the United States, executed thelr surprise attack
on Pearl Herbor during the morning hours of 7 December 154l. It was an
attack that constituted a momentous disaster for the United States; it

made our Nevy's Pacific Fleet, for all practical purposes, hors de combat

for many months. In the view of Mark S. Watson, in @& volume written for
the Army series on the history of the U. S. Army in World War II, Chief

of Steff: Prevar Plans and Preparations (1950), the disaster was the

result of a "fateful series of mischances" among which he listed those
which he considered the most important. He did not list them all; to

do so would make the disaster partake of the character of an enormous,
and almost incredible (Greek tragedy--so many big and little things went
wrong to make the disaster possible and to prevent its belng averted with
little or no damage.

The Dattle of Pearl Harbor is still being fought but the adversaries
this time are sll Americans; and though the battle is bloodless, dbecause
the weapons ere now words, not bullets or bombs, it is quite ecrimoniocus
and intense, as internal or civil wurs generally arc. This time the
battle is intended to capture, by & sort of literary "brainwashing," the
minds of a lerge segment of the Awmericsn people who more or less dimly
feel that the truth, the whole truth, bas not yet been told. Many

Americans, I on swre, are still undecided in regerd to who or what wes
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responsible for this most momentous and most humiliating naval disaster
in our history.

Pifteen million words, more or less, have been writtsn concerning,
explaining, or attempting to assess and Pix responsibilities for the
Pearl Harbor disaster, and to show why the U. 5. forces et Honolulu were
caught napping in the early hours of what President Roosevelt referred
to as that "day of infamy” when he sppearad before Congress on 8 Decenmber
1941 to declars war on Japen. The Report end Hearings Before the Joint

Committee on the Investigation of the Pearl Harbor Attack (79th Congress,
24 Session, Government Printing Office, Washington, 1946), hereinafter
referred to as PHR, alone contain 15,000 transcript pages; the over-all
final report of the Committee comprises gsome ten million words and fills

%0 volumes of closely printed text. Thus fer, in sddition to this vast

amount of material there must be at leest five million words in the
writings of private individuals. Some of them defend the Findings,
Conclusions, end Recommendations of the Majority in the PHR; others
defend the Pindings and Conclusions of the iinority in the PHR; sbill
others disagree and viclently attack both what the Majorily and the
finority sald. Even representative Keefe, a Republican who signed the
MajJority Report found it necessary to add to that report some edditionsd
vicws of his own where bhe could not agree with those of tie Majority.
It iz obvious that in this brochurs it will be impossible to deal with
all that hoz been writben on the subjeet. Even to list by title the
books, brochures, articles {not to mention the thousands ¢f newspaper
accounts, letters to editors, etc.) which have something to sdd %o the
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story would be & fairly large task. A bibliography covering the iteums
on Pearl Harbor in my private collection will be found in the "Subject

file”™ now in the NSA Library. But it is e strange, indeed, it is o

remarkable fact that not & single new item of information having a direct

bearing upon attempts to explein why the Pearl Harbor attack could have

come or did come as & compiete surorise to the U, S. has been turned up

since 1346, when the Joint Congressionsl Committee completed its task.

One may well assume, therefore, that since no new facts hiave came to light
it must be something else that is keeping the Battle of Pearl Harvor
going. “The assumption is true: <he facts developed in the various
investigations of 194k, 1945, and 1946 are being scrutinized now through
different sorts of spectacles and by different cbservers; this results

in new "interpretetions” of the old, well<known facts.

It 1s the purpose of this hrochure to make e Ffew observations and
comments on the current Ratile of Pearl Farbor. hey are dircected at the
writings of certain historians who call themselves or arse known as
"revisionists,” and who find much support in two recently published books,
both by high-renking officers of the I. 8. Pavy. These cherges sre vory
serious=-indecd they are tantanount to luputing st least very questione
ahle behavior by persons of such stature as the late President Franklin
Z. Roosevelt, the Amy's Chief of Staff, Ceneral Gecrge C. Murshall, and
the Javy's Chief of Naval Operations, Aduniral Harold R. Stark. The
charges are really not new; thelr antecedents, or nuclei of them or
carefully vellel hints st them, can be found in some of the carly write

ings of the more rabid Roosevelt<haters, and even in some parts of the

423
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reports made by various officiel U. 5. investigating bodies appointed to
lock into the matiter during the last phases of World War II or soon after
that war had been won.

In ancther section of this report will be found an attempt to expluin
the genesis of the suspiciors wbich aroused the Roosevelt haters and
which kept them "needling” the President and his Administretion for an
explanation of how it was possible that the U, S. was taken so completely
by surprise when the Japanese attacked Pearl Harbor; to introduce the
explanation at this point I think would be confusing. All thet can
logicelly be said right here is that the President, his Administration,
and the Chiefs of the two military services simply conld not afford to
permit the true explanstion to be broadcast while the war was still in
progress.

A very impartial bibliographical. survey of the principal items in the
literature of the subject has been prepered by a historian of recognized
standing, Dr. Lonis Morkoan, Chief of the Pacific Sectlon of the U, 8.
Army's Office of Hilitary Bistory. 3His survey, entitled "Pearl Harbor
in Perspective,” was published in the April 1955 issue of the United

States Neval Institute Proceedings {Vol. &1, Ho. &, Whole Ho. 626, pp. 4Gl~

468). A copy of Dr, Morton's curvey forms Appendix 1 4o this brochuvre.
A second recapitulation of the Pearl Ferbor story and also & source
of material vhich mey intercet the reader in vwhat the present brochure
aims to do is found in an article by Robert H. Ferrell, Assistant Pro-
fessor of IHigtory at Indians University, published alsc in 1855, in

The Historien, under the title "Pearl Hoxrbor end the Revisionists”
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(Vol. XVII, No. 2, Soring 1955, pp. 215-233). Prof. Ferrell's article
(given completely in Appendix 2 to this brochure) begins as follows:

It vas perhaps inevitable that after the second World War,
as after the wor of 1014.15, there should appear ia the United
States & school of historians cueastioning the purposes of the
war Znd e motives of the wertlae statemca. The coszb of ol
world wvars, in human lives and in physteal resources, was very
ighs and 1% s only asbweal wkst 3coe ladividusls ahoald Qese
tion such expenditure. Yet the new school of "revisionian”
apspoaring after Ve seoond Wrrdd War Las anderiugior a lise of
investigation which; if successful, will force the rewriting of
2z eatirz era io Anasiean Llistory,. Thoe ravlzlonlsts hope o
prove that in 1941 President Franklin i3. Roosevelt purposely
arnosed the Pacific Fleet at Pearl Horbor, and jocded th2
Japanese into attacking it, thus bringing the United States
irte the war on the side of the Allles. AS Profescor Javry
Elmer Barnes has put the case, in rather plain English, "The
nat resdt of revisiondst scholairsihiy appiteld to Poari Tarbop
boils down essentislly to this: In order to promote Roosevelt's
politicsl ambitions and his mendacious forelzn policy sauie
three thousand American boye vere quite needlessaly dbutchered.

Professer Ferrell Pollows this extract from Professor Rarnes with
the following words {in a Poctnote):

“Of course, they were only & 6xup in the bucked compnred %o
those who were ultimately slein in the war that resulted, which
wes &z needless, in terms of vital American interests, as the
surprise attack on Pesrl Harbor." H. E. Barnes, ed., Pegg_gtml
Var for Perpetunl Pesce (Caldwoll, Idsho, 3053), Oh. 20, Sumexy
and Conclusions,” p. 651. C

Strong language, isntt it? Very stfong, I think, coming from & welle
known historian such as Baymes, What substance is there to the strident
claims of those professional historlens, some of them very well-known and
able men, vho are the spokesmen for the revisioniots? What ls it that
they wish to prove from their study of the faclts concerning the Pearl

.. Harbor disaster? Pirst, they wish to prove that there wes no need at 8ll,
7 lin terms of vitel American inberests,”" for the U. 5. to enter into World

W
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War II as one of the belligerents. Some of them no doudt belleve that
we fought on the wrong side, with the wrong allies! With this phase of
the subject I shall not concern myself in this brochure, since I make no
pretence vhatscever of being a historian competent to deal with such an
important subject. Next, some of the revisionists claim or believe that
they have proof that the disaster at Pearl Harbor was no "accident,” that
it wvas brought about deliberatelyby President Roosevelt., They believe
that whet they call our "back-door” emtry imto the conflict was based
upon an erroneocus view, held by him end his Administration, as to what
the U. S. role should be in vorld affairs; also, they want us %o believe
that owr entry into World War‘ II wvas for the personal political advantage
of President Roosevelt and his followers in the Administration. They
contend, in fact, that he gosded the Japanese into making the attack,
that he enticed them into doing so by using the U. S. Pacific Fleet as a
"lure;” that he knev from the so-called "MAGIC", the Jepanese secret
communications which Army and Navy cryptanalysts had solved, the exact
time the attack would be made and the exact place where they were going
to make it; that the President semsed thet such an attack was the only
thing which would unify American opinion and bring the pecple of the
United States to & pltch of excitement and resentment sufficiently high
t0 lead them to accept with equanimity U. S. entry into World War II on
the side of the British and the French, thereby, as Roosevelt felt and
88 turned out to be the case, assuring the complete defeat of the Axis
povers; that President Roosevelt should and could have avoided the
disaster at Pearl Harbor but deliberately chose not to do so, for the

B g
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reagons cited ebove; and that he purposely withheld MAGIC intelligence
from Admiral Kimmel, Commander-ineChief of the U, S. Pacific Fleet, and
General Short, Commanding General of the Hawaiian Department, the two
higheast-ranking commanders in Hawaii who should have been but were not
given this infermation and who, therefore, were permitted by him to be
deliberately misled as to the real situation, misled to the point, in
fact, that when the attack came they were entirely unprepared even to
meet, 1t, let alone repulse it., In withholding this information, ome of
the proponents of this theory, & retired admiral of the regular U. S.

Navy, Rear Admiral Robert A. Theobsld, implies in his book, The Final
Secret of Pearl Harbor (New York: The DevineAdair Co., 1954), thet %o
meke it quite certain that the Japanese attack would be & complete sure
prise, so far as General Short and Admiral Kimmel were concei-nea, the
President had to Bave and did have as reluctant partners in his conspiracy,
or what was tantamount thereto, General mmnm_, the Chief of Staff of
the Army, and Admirval Stark, the Chief of Naval Operations, both regulay
officers of highest integrity and repute. And although Admiral Kimmel
in his own book Admiral Kimmel's Story (Chicago: Henry Regmery Co., 1955)
does not go quite so far as does Admiral Theobald as to make charges
tantamount to comspirecy, he does go guite a long distance along the same
route. There is a degree of confusion in regard to this point, however.
The following, for exsmple, appears on the inside flap of the dust cover:
Admiral Kimmel sticks ¢o his own end of the story. He tells
us chout the material he was denied, the warning messages he didn't

get., He imp no motives, he makes no deductions from wnproved
hypotheses. /["ls this a slap et Theobald?”/ But the book is
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sufficient to naill down the inescapsble point: the blame for the
loss of the Pacific Fleet battleships rests squarely on Washington
not on the men at Pearl.

But on the back of the dust Jacket, repeated from the last chapter of his
ook (p. 186), Admiral Kimmel says:

Agrin and agein in my mind I have reviewed the eventz that pree
ceded the Jepanese attack, seeking to determine if I was unjustified
in drawving from the orders, directives and information thst were .
forwvarded to me the conclusions that I did. The fact that I then
thought and now think my conclusions were sound when based upon the
information I received, has sustained me during the years that have
pessed since the first Japanese bomb fell on Pearl Herbor,

When the informetion availsble in Weshington prior to the attack
wes finnlly disclosed o me long after, I was appalled., Nothing in
my experience of mearly forty.two years service in the Navy had pree
pared me for the actions of the highest officials in owr government
vhich denied this vital information to the Pesrl Harbor commanders.

If thoge in authority wished to engage in power policies, the
least that they should have done was to sdvise their naval and nilie
tary commenders vhat they were endeavoring to accomplish. To
utilize the Pacific Fleet and the Army forces at Pearl Harbor as &
lure for s Japanese attack without advising the commander~in-chief
of the fleet und the commander of the Army base at Hawall is s.rie«
thing I am wholly unsble to comprehend,

While T am still able to do so, I feel that I must tell the
story so that those vho follow mey fully realize the imperative
necesaity of furnishing the navel end military comuanders at the
fropt with full and clesr informetion. Only in this way can the
fature security of our coumtry be preserved.

Dr. Morton in commenting upon Admiral Kimmel's Story ssys (p. 61):

Admiml Kimmel's cage rests upon the sllegation that he was
'denbemtely denied information available in Washington. Had he
had this information, he says, he would have known the Jupenese
intended to strike Pearl Harbor and could have adopted measures
to meet the attack and minimize the losses, These measures, which
he outlines, are of considerable interest, though one wonders %o
what extent they are gulded by bindsight.

Dr. Morton contimes as follows: (p. 462)
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To support his case, Admiral Kimmel draws on the evidence
presented during the investigations of the Pearl Harbor attack.
This evidence, he claims was not only obscured &t the time but
was evalusted to produce & desired result. Inconsistencies in
the testimony were ignored, and important questions raised dur-
ing the hearings left unanswered. He charges bies on the part
of investigating officers and a deliberate effort to vhite-wash
the administration and block en impartisl search for the truth.
"The Congresaional investigaetion,” Kimmel declares, "was governed
by the majority party, the Democrats. The huge volumes of
testimony in that inquiry served ¢o confuse the public mind as
%0 the significance of the facts and to smother testimony damage~
ing to the administration.” J

Responsibility for Pearl Harbor, Ximmel charges, rests
squarely upon the shoulders of his superiors in Washington and
ultimately on the Commander-in-Chief, President Roosevelt.
"Until this day,” he writes, “I have kept silence on the subject
of Pearl Harbor « . « Now, however, I deem it my duty to speak
out. What took place in Washington must be so clearly placed
on the public record that no group of persons in administrative
power will ever dexe again to invite another Pearl Harbor and
place the blame on the officers in the fleet apd in the field."”

The charges that Admiral Kinmel makes are not new and were
being circulated even before the end of the war. The Jspanese
attack on December 7 had unified the countyry and ended tempors
arily the debate between the "Isolationists” and the "inter-
ventionists” which had marked the prewayr years. All clmsses and
parties closed ranks for the duration of the struggle. Bubt even
during the war, there had been a recognition of. the political
impliecations involved in the question of responsibility for
Peerl Harbor, and the administration had teken steps to preserve
the record. S5ix investigations had been conducted even while
the conflict raged, all but one of them by the Army and Navy.

As a result, a large volume of testimony and documents that
night otherwise have been lost was assembled, But the require-
ments of wartime security and a unified national effort made
public debate lupossible.

The war over, partisan differences reappeared, end critics
of President Roosevelit began to challenge openly the views so
widely held during the weyr years. The cooling of passions and
diailiusion with the postwar world raised further questions
about American participation in the war., Historians and
publicists, as they have done affer every wer, sought to
reassess the causes of the war and o place Roosevelt's policy
in the larger perspective of American history. Thus, in the
years following the end of the comflict, @ uew interpretation of
the events that had preceded the war and of the conduct of the
war itcelf cmerged. .
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The foregoing finsl peragraph of the extract from Dr. Morton's
article brings us directly to the principal revisionist contention which
will be examired in the yresent'bmchm. The contention, 23 noted above,
vas first stated in 1945 by John T. Flyun, one of the early and most
vitriolic revilers of President Rcoseveld, in a pamphlet entitled The
Final Sccret of Peurl Herbor, in which he revealed the fact that U. 8.

eryptanslysts had solived fhe Jepanese dliplomstic codes and ciphers before
the Pearl Harbor attack. Hls contention was that the intelligence
deri.ve?._ or derivable from the solved and trenslated messages, the so=-
called MAGIC, told execily where and when the Japanese were going to

strike; that this priceless informstion Roosevelt deliberately keg‘b from
Admiral Kimmel and Ceneral S}mrtv, with the result that the Japanese were
able to make thelr abtuck with complete suxpriss; and that the loss of
men end ships that resulted therefrom, however unfortunate it was for
the U. 5. and & few American families, unified the coumtry. Thaet, claims
Flymn, ves Roosevelt’s aim. AL any rate, as Dy. HMorton indicates, the
Japanese attack on Peerl Harbor ended the debate between the "isolatione
1sts” end the "interventionists.”

0
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2. THE REAL ESSENCE OF THE PROBLEM

Distilled down %o its essence, therefore, the first question is: Did
MAGIC really contadn ciear and uaeguivocal indications as %o exactly vhere
and when we wouid be hit by the Japanese in the wir vhich Roosevelt knew,
or was expecting, or &t least fell was in the offug?

Much hes been written on this basic gueskion; Murdreds of thoussndise-
indeed, millions of words, in fact--hove beern publdshzl on the question in
an attempt to answer it either aifimmatively or negebively. If some
Americans now scoff at the whole business and say that all that could be
said on the point was sald yesxrs ago--wiy nob stop flogglog a dzad horselw

let them note that in s stedd aué unsensaflonel & newgpapor oo The Wall

Street Journal there sppesred & loug review of Adudral Kimmel's Story in
the fissue for it Janusry 1955, accoupanied by a lengthy cditorial entitled
"Pearl Harbor” in the seme issue; let them note, too, enother lengthy
editorial entitled “Myth of the broken cose” in the issue of the seme
newapaper for 21 Janusry 1i5355; lebt them read salso the bakerts dogen
"letters o the Editor” in the issues for 21 Jenuery, 3% Jomuary, 4 Tebe
ruary, end © Februury 1555, ail commenting upon the two editorials and
the book review mentioned ebove. The question therefore can by no means
be sald to be "dead and burled;" in facht, even to this day reforences %o
the "MAGIC” that was available and was no% used at the time of Pearl Harbor
keep popping wp in the daily newspapers, inm periodicals, and in books,

For instance, theve are two "Letters to ihe Editor” in the Washington Post

on Peayl Harbor as recently as 31 December 1956 end L Januwary 1957. And
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g8 I write this brochwre woyrd has Just come that the Chicago Tribume is
about to pudblish another (revisionist, no doubt) article on the subject.
Let me therefore repeat the guestion: Did MAGIC really contaln clesr

and unequivoeal indicabtions as to cxactly where and when we would be hil

by the Japenese in the woar which Weshington knew, or was expecking, or &b

least felt weeg probebly soon 4o come?

In this brochure I shall attempt to dispose of this bsaic question
in a rather simple and, in my opiniom, & definitive manmer by atiecking
it in vhat may seem to be a round-sbout way. But just before getbing
right down to it I will place before the reader & short extract from a
book published late in 1956 by & recently-deceagsed and & highly~respected
(by certain Americans who knew him) Japanese whose words were suche he
died in prison«-as %o indicate that he had no parkicular reason for hiding
the truth. I refer here to the book written by Shigenori Togo, the men
vho was Japanese Minister of Foreign Affairs et the fime of the ettack on
Pearl Harbor and across whose desk there certalnly muwst have pessed the
most important of the messages to and fpom the Foreign O0ffice and Jupanese
smbassadors, miniaters, and comsuls ebroed.>

It i3 to be voted, and indeed emphasized, before going into this
phase of the subject, that at the time of the attack the only cryptogrsphic
systems vhich the U, S. cryptanalytic agencies had solved and were able to
read were not the Japanese military or naval systems; they vere only the
gystems used by the Foreign Office. Whatever intelligence the U, S.
suthorities were sble to obtain fram MAGIC therefore must have been und

1 The couse of Japan. New York: Simon and Schuster, 1956.
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wns clearly derived from Japanese diplomstic communications, With this
fact in mind let us take a look at an item of much interest in Togo's book
(pp. 118.119 and 197):

- It is not Aifficult to conceive the extent of the tyramny of
the military power from the fact that on the eve of the Pacific
Wear such & fundamental datwm as the total tonnage of Japapese
naval vessels--not to speak of the displacement of the gigantic
battleships Yamato and Musashi, or the plan to asttack Pearl Harbore
was vigilently withheld 1e knowledge of the civilian cabinet

. ministers, General Togo even Gold me in Sugsmo Prison that it was
only at the IMITE that he had first learned that the Jepenese task
force which caxried out the atfack on Pearl Harbor had assenbled
at Hitokappu Bay on 10 November, and weighed anchor for Haweli on
the morning of the 26th! The high command did not divulge its

- secrets even to the full general who was Premier and Minigter of
War; it 1s easy to conceive how other ministers were treated.

e & & » 9 * & * * 9 N

The way decision was thus made, and various problems which
wounld arise with the opening of the war were submitted to meetings
of the Liaison Conference. One thing vhicheneedless to say--ves
not discussed in the Liaison Conference was operational sspects
of the impending hostilities. It was disclosed at the IMIFE that
the naval task Pforce under Admiral Negumo had seiled from Hitoksppu
Bay on 26 November under orders to strike Pearl Harbor, and in its
Sudgment the tribunal made the sbsurd finding that the scheduled
attack was freely dlscussed at the meeting of the Liaison Conferw
ence on 30 November. We had, of course, no knowledge of the plan;
it was the inverisble practice of the high command not to divulge
to civilian officials, guch as us, any scrap of information beay-
ing on these highly secret operations, end enyone familiar with
the system will readlily understend our total lack of knowledge of
them. (This condition is sufficlently well illustrated by the
fact, vhich I have mentioned elsewhere, that Tojo told me that
it vas only &t the IMIFE trisl itself that he first learned any
operational details of the Peurl Harbor attack; a mass of addie
tional evidence wes adduced ai the trial showing that the civilian
metbers of the Cabinet had no prior knowledge even of the existe
ence of the plan vo attack Hawail.) :

Tt 18 & fair ani logical deduction to conclude that if Togo was
telling the truth, 1.e., that the civilien mesbers of the Japenese Cabinet,
including Prime Minister Tc jo and the Foreign Minister himself, hed no

13
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prior knowledge of the pm, including of course the exact date on vhich
the Pesyl Harbor attack was to take place (as set by the Japanese high
command) then the MAGIC messages themselves in the commumicetions from
and to the Foreign Office could not possibly have contained any deﬁnite
information, let alone e clear-cut statement, on this very lmportant
point. And if the MAGIC messages did not contain this information or

atatenent how could President Roosevelt or any members of his immediate
official Pamily, or the hesds of U. 5, Army and U. S. Navy intelligence
staffs knovw from the MAGIC messages exactly where and when the attack
vas coming? But this question does arise: did Togo tell the truth in

his book? If he did, how are we to explain certalin of the MAGIC messages
the records of PHR contain?

Aftey re.reading the hundreds of MAGIC messages that were exchanged
between the Foreign Ministry and its offices sbroad in the year 194l it
seems fantastic, it strains owr credulity, to believe that -‘ogo did not
imow what was being planned. To mention only one set of messages, the |
"dead line” messagese-after which “things are autometically going to
happen”=how could Togo not know what was being planned? Eow are ve o
explain them, if he didn't know that the U. S. was going to be attacked:?
But let it be remembered that we are now re-reading the messages from the
vantage point of hindsight. There is not s single message that can be
said to contain categorical evidence proving that Minister Togo must have
known that Pearl Harbor was to be the target. In 1946, and even now
vhen we re-resd those messages in Part 12 of the PHR, I vealize that it
'is fantastic that somebody in U. S. Intelligence did not or could not
see t:-ha.t the blow was being prepared against Pearl Ha:.‘bur‘. gut if we
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believe Togo was an honorable man and was telling the truth, then we must
conclude that he and his closest associstes 4in the Foreign foice weye 1o
better at intelligence than our own intelligence suthorities! They knew

or only guessed that something was going %o hsppen mér 29‘ Hovenber 1941,
but they didn't know exactly where or when! Or shall we assume thai some-

body in the Japanese Forelgn O0ffice; some subordinate of Togo, the Foreign
Minister, wes "in on the secret”--and it was he that took care of all the
messages that pointed o Pearl Harbor®? Could be! Could easily bel! How
many messages golng out of any one of our own large executive depariments
and signed by the Secretary thereof are actually séen by the Secretary?
But I do not wish to belebor the point. Iet us merely ssy that it is
quite possible that Togo saw none of the crucisl messages or, vhat iy
moye probsbhle, that he saw them but, not being "in on the secrets” of the
Japanese high commend, 41 not dravw the correct deductionse-that the U, &,
was to be attacked, without warning, st Pearl Hexbor in the early hours

of T December 1941, and that the object of the attack was to destroy the
U. 8, Facific Fleet iF pessible. But let us also remember thot realing
the MAGIC messages in 1946 or in 1956 is analogous %o reading the final
chapier of a detoctive talewwbefore the preceding chupters, with thelr
false and purposely misleading clues injected by the author to evoke the
reader's interest. In rveading such a detective story in the normal menner
the final chapter often makes the reader feel inferior, even silly, thet
he could not see the truth, the real elements of the mystery right from

the begioning. The Japanese were getting intelligence peportsescall them

12 you will, "ordinary spy reports” from several U. S, military bases
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besides Hawall; such as the Phllippines, Paname Canal, Seattle, and San
Francisco. It is true that Japancse intevest in Pearl Harbor seemed to
be ani sctually was much greater than at any other base; dubt one could
also say that this grester interest stemmed Lyom & perheps justifieble
fear by the Japanese that the U. S. Pacific Fleet g__i_@;g sortie same dark
night and strike the £irst blow ab Japan. They, as well as the U. 8.,
did not went 4o Le teken by swrprise! Perhaps an intelligence gpecilalist
with the proper kind of Ilmegination might have hit wpon the resl reason
for the greater Japsnese interest ip Pearl Harbor, but who can be certain
of this? All that can safely be said in regard to the Togo statement is
this: Both he snd Prime Minister Tr jo may have been told, or they msy
have guessed, that Japan wes golng to sirike~-but not exactly where and
vhen. These two very important elements the Japanese high comand kept to
1tself even after the task force left Japanese waters. And for those
revisionists who think the U, 8. note of 27 November 1941 was an ultimatum
and that it wes that note whilch triggered off the sttack on Pearl, lst
them mminate on the fact that the Japanses %ask force which attacked
Pearl left sepuncee wabers the doy bdefore that rote was sent off by
Secretary of State Hull. Ids note may have constltuted sn wltimatuwiiom
but it did nob briug on the abbuck. The abtack was plamned very carefully,
months before that, and, tc repeat,wrs already lsvnched to the joint of
having departed fvun Jayonese waiers.

Bup there is snobher revisionict prop, sud a very lmporteut ope, I
must emphasize, which I wish o undermine, for i% should be greatly weske
ened wvhen consideration is given to another argument which is so obvious
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- and simple that it hss been & source of astonishment to me that the revie

sionists themselves hove not thought of it. {(Paventheticolly I weut to
preface the srgument by saying thail ayy hesitency I might have in stabiug
it molts awsy vhen I £ind that several very sbic aavel bictoricns with
vhom I have dlscussed it expressed astunisinerd thel it hod net hitheric
been menticned. One of thanm sald of 4% in o roccnt personnl, lettcr:

"In retrospect I reslize that somwe of the idevs yov wmenbioned shout the
events loeding wp %0 the atback on Peorl Harbor (like Colwmbus' egg
trick!) are stariling in thely simplicity zod dbviousnesswsinich 42 pro-
bably why no one has herstofore rocogrized their fumporience.” My cone
tention, I think, werrsnls oking & 02w look ab o ceyiain phecse of the
Pesxl dexbor mystery--1f indeed there is wy mystery chouvh the fectors
entering into our Lelng tsken by surprisc.

17
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3. A NEW LOOK AT THE REVISIONISTS ALLEGATIONS OF CONSPIRACY TO KEEP
KIMMEL AND SHORT IN THE DARK

The revlsionisﬁs' srgument, which I hesitate %o repeat (since 1% has
already been stated in this brochure; but its repetition moy mske what I
have to say crystal clear) runs us follows: President Roosevelt desper-
ately needed 8 good reuson for Justifylong America's entry into World Wer
II. He needed it in oxder to save the British from utier defest by Germany;
France vas alyesdy down and out! Britein was next on Hitler's liste-end
then the United States. (The revisionists deny this most vehemently, but
everything that Hitler had done thus far was strictly in asccordance with
the plans he outlined in Mein Kampt's In this comnection, and as I write
this, there has Just come out a bnoi: vhich must be regarded as authorita-
%ive and vhich is called The German Weapons and Secret Weapons of World

Wer II, by Rudolf Lusav. Lusar was head of the Technical Arms Department
of the Wehrmacht. He discloses that Germany was also building the Heinkel
343, & bonber cepeble of reaching the United States and returning without
refuelling. Several of the planes were ready at the end of the war. The
book also says that it was originally plamned %o stage the firsy air vaid
on the United States in May J94S. Do much for the revisionist contention
that the benign Herr Hitler had no designs whatsoever on the United States;
for it is very clesr that he planned to bomd this cowmtyry Just 85 soon as
he had finished off England.) The President wanted to gebt the U. S. into
the conflict not only to save Britein but, ultimately, also to save the

U. 8, Timely action vas needed, He bad goaded Hitler by several
wmeutral acts in the Atlantic, as well as in esteblishing certain U, &,
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logistical relations with Britain (“lend-lease,” the transfer of 50 U. S.
destroyers, etc.); but Hitler was too clever to be pushed to the point
vhere Germany would have 4o declare war on Americs prematurely or where
German action would Justify an American declaration of war on Germany
before Germany was ready for such action. Hitler realized, as well as
President Roosevelt, that wvhat American did held the answer to Cermsny's

problem. President Roosevelt knew that the America people were not ai
all anxious to be drawn into the Eurcpesn war; but he feld that it was
shsolutely necessary that something be "engineered,” sc to speek, in order
that the U, 5. would, willy-nilly, be drawn into the conflict. This, the
revisionists contend, as I have reiferated, Roosevelt felt was necessaxy
to save England; 1% was incldentally also intended, they contend, %o
divert sbtention from the failure of the New Desl 4o bolster the bedly
segging asconomy &8 a yYesult of defective monetary policles and other
internel aifficulties. U. S. yarti.(:ipation wES a.lso a D::xmmtic objecw
t4ive, they say, for Roosevelt's reelection; and, of tzm;me, it was &esir«
able to preserve the Pooseveltien prestige. The long«drswn out srguments
with the Jspanese might, in view of the Tri-partite pact of the German,
Italisn, and Japanese Axls, and despite Hitlert's canny strategy of not
succubing to American provomtion in the AYlantic, aerva his purpose,
Americens did not like the Japayese apyhow and were distrustful of these
Orlentals. Jopauese aubitions in the Fer East and distrust of the
Japanese kept popplng up everyvhere in the American press and public
opinicn. Bub Roosevelt felt that there was one sine que non to getbing

into & shooting war with the Japanese. In the words of Mr. Stimson, his
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Secretary of Wgr, wfortunate words one must xow admit, it was sll s
patter of how the Japanese "eould be maneuvered into the position of
firing the firet shot,” otherwise the American people wonld be lukewarn
shout & war with them. MNAGIC, 4bhat Is, the sseret intelligence which the
solution of the Japenese diplomatic communications made availeble to the
Roosevelt Admivistration in great shundance, provided o goldon wpportmie
ity--s0 the revisioniste, including Admiral Thecbald, fervently balieve.
I have alyeady and more than once giated in this brochure that the rovi-
sionizts ave convinced that MAGIC t0ld the President exectly whem and
vhere thelr attock wag going to be Taunched: in the early hours ¢f the
morning of 7 Decenber 1541, abt Pearl Harbor. By withholding frem fthe
Ue 85 commenders at Pearl Haxbor this private kxnowledge which Preslient
Roogeveld galned {rom MACIC--the horse's moukdh, 8o tc cpeoke-cnsbled the
President to accorplish his heart's dezire., With this highly secret infors
mation he ¢ould mapevver the Jepanese so thak they would fire the fived
ghot; he realized, they concede, thet there would be some losses of men
and ghips, of course, as so cellously steted in the extract from Profescor
Barnes which was guoted dbove, but these losses, they contond, he would
regaxd &3 justified in the long run by saving England, Fyence, and, lager
on,; Amerlce yom the Azxis Poverseeand it would lneidentally zave his own
prestige and insure his peelection.

| The important element in the forvepoing argument; let 2% bte noted, is
that, o quote from Secretery Stimson's diary & bit, Japan was to te
"meneuvered into w iynﬁiticm of fivipe the fyat shot.,” The moneuver,
accoxding to the revisionists, included using the ehips of the U, S,
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Pacific Fleet as & lure; that is vhy, they argue, Roosevelt insisted on
baving that fleet based on Pearl He.:rhqz: ingtead of on the west coast of
the U, S., as Admiral Richardson, Klﬁéi's predecessor, wished. But let
be noted that Admiral Richardson's objections stemmed from purely loglse
tical considerations, such as easier mirxkemnqe snd yepair; end morale
of the sailors entersd inbo the picturefiavali was o long vy from *home”
for the men and officers of the fieet. (Admiral Richardson had not the
glightest iden that keeping the fleet at Pearl would deter the Japanese
from doing what they wished to do in the Far East. In fack, he thought
keeping the fleet on the West Coast would be more effective, Well, the
President, the Commander-in-Chief, didn't agree with Admiral Richardson
and that's all there was ¢0 it. It twned out, uanfortunately, that
Admiral Richardson's view was more neayly correct than the President'sm-
but does that mean thet the President had ulterior motives in keeping the
fleet at Pearl? I don't think so at all,)

And now for my counter argunent on thls score.

If we agsume for the moment that the revisionists’ argument is valid,
vhy don't they go just one step further? If all that President Roosevelt
thought necessary for his purposes, if all that he was seeking, was “"to
maneuver the Japanese into firing the first shot,” and 1f MAGIC contained
all that the revisionists c¢laim it contained, would it not have been

possible, by means of that very MAGIC to accuamplish his purpose without
such a terrible loss of American lives and, without loss of any of the
ships that constituted the apple of the President's eye, the Navy's big
baﬁleshiys? If Roosevelt was so clever & politician and so Machiavellian
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in his strategy as to thivk wp & wvay of msneuvering the Japanese into a
position wherein they would be enticed or muvere& into firing the first
shot, should one dovbt that he lacked the imtelligence to have gone one
step further in his mmmswmammmm;mlm%
himgelf: ‘“Eurekal. I've got 1t., MAGIC will provide the golden opportune
ity I've sought for so many months. I've hit upon a perfectly marvelous
idea and opportunity! An absolutely and smazingly wonderful opportunity?
The Japanese have to come to Pearl Harbor to make thelr swrprise abtack,
an attack clearly indicated by these MAGIC messages. They have %o travel
several thousand miles, in fact, to get to Hawall from Japanese waters.
If we caught them red-handed, so to speak, nesy Hawali and preferably
Just vefore the attack, nobody could possibly claim they were on & simple,
haymless reconnaissance missione-or on maneuvers. wWhy, with Japanese-
Amrim relations so tense, even if they were caught as many z2s 500 miles
from Pearl Harbor every unbliassed critic would say that they really fired
first! So I'll bring Kimmel and Short fully into the picture-I'll tell
them the story MAGIC is telling us. I'll secretly order them here righ:b
awsy (Novembexr 26th, for exsmple) and ['l1l have Marsball and Stork coue
in. I'll show Kimmel and Short the crucial messages. Then I'll teld
then scmething like this: Look, my boys, you see now, don't you, vwhat
your're in an excellent position 4o do to the Nips? You see, don't you
that this inside and sbsolutely suthentic information says that they are
coming from Japan %o attack Pesrl Harbor by surprise at seven o'clock on
the morning of 7 December; they've coming with a task force which will
certainly be & pretty big one, you may be sure. It will comprise several
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alveraft carriers; they'll have maybe as many as 350 aircraft, including
dive bombers, etc., of cowrse. Now as Commander-in<Chief, I direet you
$0 do everything thet will Ye necessary %o meet them when or preferably
Just before they sxrive to launch their attack, I direct you to destroy
them; knock out the whole task force, carrlers, planes, and 8ll, jJust
before they reach Cahu if you can. I divecht you, Kimmel, %o geb all your
battleships sud, of course, yowr corriers out of thelr berthing vosltions
at Pearl Harbor gsome time during the night, so thet there won't be any
ships there for them to borb. And I want all your planes, ineluding
those o1 your caryiers,; the Lexington apd the Fnterprise, wp in the air
before seven o'clock; you'd hetter get off meassges et once to Halsey,
Newton, and Brown 4o slert their task forces; if they're not &b Pemrl get
them back as soon as you can; maybe you'll want %o get the Saretoge back
from the West Coast o Join your other csyriers 4f there's obill ime,

and that's OK wlth me, ©Short, I vant all your anti-adrcraft batteries on
shore tc be 7ully manned and with live azmunition at hand, veady for usc)
I know you don't have tco much in the vay oF fighter end bober planes bub
I wvant you €0 wipe oub a8 meny of their mircyraft as possible with vhat you
have, TPorget that screuwy messsge you sent sbout being prepared Dox
sabotage~~in view of these messgages that's an sbsurd notlon. You can see
that the Japs are af¥er cur fieet ond the protection of the fleet while
at Pearl i3 yowr Job, you know. 3He sure your vadar is working properlye
2k houwrs o day, I went you, Kimme?, to get your cerriers and bebtlewagons
out where they can destroy the Japaness carrders and escort ships vhile
their oircraft are being shot down just before they veach Pecrl, This,

-
)
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my lads, if dome well will go down in history as the most thrilling end
fmportant battle of all ¢ime. Even much more mrtt_\nt is the fact that
if you knock off thely task force and assuming we'll have minimal losses
we'll come out fer ahead in paval strength because right now owr Pacific
Fleet 1s no mabch for the Japanese Combined Fleet-wthey've got move
rabizza}v, faster ships, and with longer-range gm tha.p we have; I'nm sorry
to say‘:.. ‘Bow I don't went you 4o tell anybody I've alerted you becsuse of
what YAGIC 4s telling us. We're resding their wost segret diplomatic
codes and ciphers, vhich are 81l that count now anyhow right nov, and it's
very importest that they don't get susplelons ebout the security of their
Forelgn Office commmications. I want them to continue using those '
cryptographic systems because the information we're getting out of them
now is priceless and will be even more fo in the war vhich will without
question ensuc when you've destroyed their ask force for Pearl. ‘They
won't get suspiclous 1f you will ot exactly as though yowr operstions
anl maneuvers sre a rovbine matterw~training--but I want you to be on
Alert No. 1. Ton't forget that on 17 June 1940, when e thought the Japs
and the Germans were sbous o gang up on us,; we sent messages é.ﬁ.rectina
our commanders €o pub owr forces at Pearl on a full alert, ami yn# d:la
a0} that time, fortunately, mthing heppened, We were probably jumping -
a% conclusions then, but now it's different--now we've gob tnis MAGIC,
Yomtll have %o go at this carefully, of course, so as not to slaxm the
Japs and. lesd them into calling the whole thing off, which they still cau
a5, 83 We understand thelr plan, Bub the important thing is to keep fram
dolng anything that will slarm them and make them eall the whole thing off.
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I vant then to fire the firat shobt. I'm sure you can think up ways <o
vork up to & condition of full alert so that they'll not get eusplcious.

~ Thay misht mcipitate an “"incident" and give the Japs an excuse to say
- that we committed the first overt act. Bealdes we don't want to alam

the civil population, of course. Everybody knows that yelations between
Japan and ourselves are very tense right now, sc that exercises and
maneuvers of a rxefensivé ype will certainiy be regawied ss only logical
andthemtmalthﬁmtodo. Now I éuggestmhyouge{;haek'&oywr
posts ag fast as you canwyou've got only & few days to prepayre & resl
surprise for the surprise they think they're goiag %o spring on us.
Let's see how well you can kuock 'em off. Give 'em helil &0 loug, aud
the best of luck %o you. About i50 mililfon Awericans will probebly never
kuow how much they will owe you two for what I'm sure you'll be dole %0
do, even with vhat 1little you have. I wish you hed mre--ibu‘b you know
what the trouble is. I don't have to tell you. It's enough merely %o
remind you thet the Selective Service Act was extended in the House Just
a few months ago by & majority of just one voie.”

On 3 December the President (in this imaginative account) sends s
message to Kimmel and Shord $elling them that we've deciphered & long
messege from $he Japsuese Consul, Kifa, in Jonolulu %o Tokyo, “Eite is
the Jap whose been giving them the dope sbout ships in havbor; he's the
one vhose been sending Tokyo the detailed storvy of whet ships are anchored
vhere, Bub from this 3 Decewbey awssage 1t'c clsar that scmehow Kite has
Pigured out, or maybe samebody in Tolyo d&s figured out, thsbt it would be
a terrible denoument to come 8ll e way fcom Japan to make f.haiz' gwrnrise
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attack only to find that the 'birds had flown the coop.' So Kita has
figured out a plan vhereby he and his sples in and around Pearl can sepd
last word to the Japanese Attack Force Commander that everything ie OK,
that the important elements of the U. S. Fleet are still in their berthing
positions, end haven't suddenly deperted Just a few hours before ‘ﬁhe
attack 1s scheduled to commence.” (See Message from Kita to Tokyo,

3 December 1941, p. 267 of Part 12, PHR, a message which by the wey vas
not proceased until 11 December 1941 bubt which 12 there really was & cone
spiracy would certeinly have been done before 7 December,) "Kite doesn't
even have the slightest inkling, of course, thet I'm telling you, Kimmel)
and Short, about the get-up he has prepared $o make sure to get word ¢o
the Jepanese task force tha% the birds haven't flown the coop. You arrange
with Haval ‘iﬁienzgence, Army Intelligence and the FBI at Honolulu to

greb Kita and Kita's spies on Saturday and hold them in cold storage
wtil after the plapned for attack has came off--and has, of course,
failed, because 11'; will fail, if you've done your part.”

If any reader of this brochure thinks that the foregoing fanciful,
imaginative, or conjectural accomt of what might have happened is too
bizarre for serious consideration let me call his attention to vhat
Admiral Kimmel says he could and would have done-wif only he'd been "let
in on” MAGIC, or &t leest had been told what was in those messages. Iet
me quote from his book (pp. 87-88):

No one had & more direct and immediate interest in the
security of the fleet in Pearl Harbor than its commapnder-ine

chief, Iio one hald & greater right than I to know that Japan

had carved up Pearl Harbor into sub.sreas and wes seeking and
receiving reports as to the precise berthings in that harbor

|




REF ID:A485355

of the ships of the fleet. I had been sent Mr. Grew's yeport
earlier in the year with positive advice from the Navy Departe-
ment that no credence was $0 be placed in the rumored Japanese
plans for an attack on Pearl Hurbor. I was told then, that
no Jepanese move sgainst Pearl Harbor appema “uminent or
plapned for in the foreseeable future.” Certainly I was entitled
%0 know vhen information in the Navy Department completely a\merw
} ed the information and edvice previously given to me. Surely, I
vas entitled to know of the intercepséd dispatches between Tokyo
and Honolulu on apd after September 2K, Jokl, which indicated
that a Japanese move againat Pearl Harbor was planned in Tokyo.

Enowledge of these inmtercepted Japanese dispatches would
have radically changed the eshimate of the situetion made by
me apd my staff, It would have suggested a re-orientation of
our planned operations st the outset of hostilities. The war
plans of the Navy Department and of the Pacific Fleet, as well
&8s our directives and information from Washington prior to the
sttack, indicated thet the Pacific Fleet could be most effec-

tively employed sgainst Japan through diversionary raids on

the Marshalls when the Japsnese styuck st the Malay Baxrier.

Knowledge of a probsble Japanese atteck on Peayl Harbor would

have afforded an opportunity to ambush the Japanese striking

force as it ventuwred to Hawail., It would have suggested the

wisdom of concentyating owr rescurces % that end, rather than

conserving them for the Marshell Islands expedition.

mm Kimmel cites instance after instance, message after message,
vhich contained information which, he says, would bave been of vital
importance to him and would have prevented the disaster if only be had
been given the informmtion which he should have received as Commander-
inChief of the U. S, Pacific Fleek. Maybe, naybe be's right in his
contention. His proximity %o the scene might have led him to make the
imaginative Jump that was neceaseyy in opder to reach the correct solution
to the astounding story that MAGIC was wnfolding.

Imagination bag,s down when one cmidjm.what guch & picture ag I
bave conjured uwp might have been painted from vhat the Japanese messages

weye saying-~-or what the revisionlats claim they clearly said.
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It is true that in Hawail there were fewer fighting sireraft, both
Ay and Eé;w, 4hen vere released from the Japanese corriers when the
attack wes immcheds Bub the aircpaft on the U, S, iimy carriers Lexington
and Bnterprise, had these carriers heen positioned on the basis of the
informetion the ravisionisis glain President Roosevelt hed, would have
wede up for the lack of aireraft on Haweil at the time of the attack.

In Admiral Kimmel's story the Admiral mekes o few coments on the
question of whether his account represents action thet he might have

taken. But let 1% be remembered that wbat he says ic based on hindsight;
and the Aduiral freely admits this point. He comtends thab had he had

the "beﬁefi'vk’ of the intelligence which was in $he MAGIC messages end which
he never received the shory would have been very different (pp. 109-1i11):

The question will ardse in your minds, as it has in nine:
Would the receipt of this information have made a difference in
the events of December 77 No man can now state as a fach thab
he would have taken & certain cowrse of acktlon years age had he
known facts vhich were then unimown to him. ALl he can glve is
his present comvickion, divorcing himself from hindsight as far
as humonly possible, and re-creating the atmosphere of the past
and the factors which then influenced him. I give you my views,
formed in this menner.

Had 1 learned these vital facts and the "ships in harbor”
messages on Novembey 20th, it is my present convietion that I
would have rejected the Navy Departument's suggestlon to send
sarriers to Weke and Midway. 1 would have ordered the third
caxrier, the “Sarstoga,” back from the West Coast. I would
have gone %o sea with the fleet and endeavored 4o keep 1% in
an intercepting position at sea. This would have permitted
the disposal of the striking pover of the fleet to meet an
attack in the Hawaliasn area. The requirements of keeping the
$leet fueled, however, would have made necessayy the presence
in Peayl Harbor from time to time of detachwents of various
units of the main hody of the fleet.

On December b, smple time remained for the Navy Departe
ment $o Sorvard %o me the information which I have oubllned,
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and in addition the following significant facts, which the Navy
Department learped between November 27 and that date:

1) Japan had informed Higler that war with the Anglo-Sexon
powers would break out sconer than anyone dreamb;

2) Japan had broadcast heyr winds code signal using the words -
"east wind rain," meening war or a mpture of diplomatic
relations with the United States,

Assumizg thet Lor thy first time op December 5§ 1 kad 211 the
importent information then availeble in the Havy Departuent, it
is my present conviction thet I would have gone to sea with the
Tleet, inciuding the carrier "Lexington” snd arranged a rendesze
vous &t ses with Hedsey's carrier force, and been in s goold
position to intercept the Japtrese aktack.

At some %ime prior o December 6, 1941, the commanders of
Hawali could bave been lpformed of the promise of smmed suppord
as detailed by the War Depasriment in London t¢ Aly Marasbhal Brooks
Pophaa in Singepore, This vital infoxrmation wus denied to thom.

On Decegber C, Zifteen hours before the sbtack, smple tine
still remained for the Nevy Depaxdment o glve me all the gsignie
ficant facts which I have cutlined and which were not svailable
to me in Havali, In addition, the Navy Department could then
heve adviged we that thirteen parts of the Jupunese reply to
the American proposals haed heen yeceived, that the tone and
temper of this wessage indicated a break in diplomatic relobions
oy war with the Uhited States, and thet the Japonese roply was
%o be formelly presembed to this government at & specisl hour
gocn to be fixed. Had T received this information on the
afternoon of Decenber S, it 18 my present conviction that I
would Lave orler:i all fleot wnits in Pesrl Harbor Lo seo,
arranged o rendezvous with Halsey's task force rebwning from
Wake, and boen reudy 4o intercopt the Japunese force by the
time fixed for the outbreak of war.

Even on the morning of December 7, four or five hours heforo
the atiuck, had the Neyy Depertment for the fiwst time seen Tid
to send me all this significent inforwation, and the additionsd
fect that 2:00 P.M., Yashington tine, had been fixed Lfor the
delivery of the Japanese ulvimatum to the United States, oy
light forces could haye moved ouk of Pearl Harbor, all ships
in the harbor would have been ab general guariers, and all
resources of the £icet in Instont readiness to repel an attaek,

For some years I, too, have wondered %o what exbeny Kimael's state-
mepts a8 $o what we conld or might have done, had he had or had ke been
given the information in VAGIC, erc guided by hindsighb. Bub haviug
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read his book carefully I feel that it is cuite possible that he is
waypanted in meking his statements. The defense of Pearl Harbor was not
his responsidbility, of course-it was Geperal Short's. But between
Kimmel and Short, both capable officers, their closeness %o the situation
and the greater amount of time they had to think about thelr duties and
responsibilities with respect to a::reamm the Pacific Fleet might
nave led them €0 @ safe conclusion: thst they hod better toke all precsu-
tions to avold & sudden attack on Peayl m.

One further comment: if, as & yesult of the inside information the
revisionists say we got from MAGIC, sll the submarines, destroyers,
cayriers and battleships in a large task force of the U, S. Paciflic Fleek,
or even the whole of the fleet bad been lying in wait for the Japanese
task force sent to meke the attack on Pearl Harbor there would have been
st:engthqenough, I think, to wipe cut the whole Japanese %ask force. It
is true that the Jepsnese task force included only two battleships, but
it bad six carriers, two heavy crulsers, s light cruiser, eleven destroyers
and & nusber of svbmarines, sbout five, some of which carried midget svbe
marines. (Capt. Harley Cope, USN 4n "Climb Mowné Niitaks,” U, 8. Naval
Institube Proceedings, Vol. 72, No. 12, December 1946.) I suy this on
the sssumption that Admiral Klmmel would have vimed hie counteremove so
that the Japanese task force would not have had the protection of the
siveralt of its carriers, becauge If Kimmel and Short had operated on the

basls of information the revisionisis claim was clenrly in MAGIC the
Japanese 36L planes would already have departed on their misslon. This
I regard as o point of considerable importance. There is reason to
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belleve that had only a task force of the U. S, Pacific Fleet gone out o
engage the Jopanese task :tom:é in battle on the high sees, the U, 8. task
force would probebly have fared very badly because of the fact that the
Japanese not only did have six carriers %o our two butk also thelr battle-
ships were faster and had longer ringe guns. Also, if even the whoie

U. . Pacific Fleet had gone owt, on $he basis of MAGIC—-es WAGIC s con-

geived by the “revisionists”eto meet the Japenese task force which was
%o attack Pearl Harbor, and had the two navies met on the high seas, with
the Japenese carriers still sailing vith their entire complement of air-
planes, the Us 5. Pacific Fleet would probebly have suffered a tervible,
bumiliating and ignominious &etea:h,\ because the Japanese task force
because of what I have already salfltleyxhad six cerriers to owr %o,
their first~line batileships were speedier and had longer-range guns than
any of owr own battleships had. Not only would there have been & great

loss of American lives, bub also ncne of our battleships or caxriers could
bave been reised and repailred. As it was, and quite fortultously, there
were no carriers st Pearl on 7 December; and with one exception the baktle.

ships damaged or sunk at Peayl Harbor were soon back in commission, $hanks
to an ohvious strategic error made by the Japanese high commepdewthey could
have but they falled to destroy the dry docks, machine shops, and the
repair facilities at Pearl! Why the Japanese overlooked this zather
obvious point is nok too clear; it shows them to be not oo good us navul
strategists. Only one Japanese naval officer has thus far tried to
explain this strategic error. They, or st least Admirel Tamemoto had the
imaginstion to realize thak with the U. S. Fleet in being in the Pocific
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their plans for conquest could not be carried to completion very easily;
therefore it vas necessaxy to destroy the U. S, Fleet. Dr. Iouls Morton
in his article "The Japsnese decision for war” (U. S. Nuval Institute

Proceeditgs, Vol, 80, No. 12, December 195%, p. 1329) soys:

Against the almost wanimous opposition of the nsval »lannevs,
Adniral Yamamoto remained ademant. Unless the American Fleet
could be destroyed ak opne blow ab the atert of the war, he
insisted, the Japanese would probebly fall in their effort to
seize the Netheriend Indies and Malsys. And even if they wera
guccessful, he predicted that they would e unsble to hold sny
of their gains for long. + « + A determined effort Ly the
Pacific Fleet might well result in disester. . . « The Japanese
believed it necessary to destroy or neubralize the American
Fleet at Pearl Harbor and to deprive the United States of its
base in the Fhilippines.* Apmerica'’s line of commmications
peross the Pacific was to be cut by the seizure of Wake and
Cua. '

Bub tiat wes as far so imagination of Japanese Navy stvategists carried
them: the only thing they thought necessexry was to destroy the U, 5.
Pacific Fieeb., On the other hand, although the U. S. war plans elsbopr-
ated in the fixst half of 1941 E?ﬁtfmm@liﬁm year) took into ascount
the possibility that the Japanese might, (28 they had three times before
snd successfully) begin & var on an enewmy without a preceding declarstion
of war, that is, by & surprise attack, and although this possibility was
placed fixst on the list of conkingencies, with Pearl Harbor as the focal
point of the sttack, and elthough the wey plans even envisioned that such
an shtack could come from alyeraft flown from carriers, it is an almosh
inexpliceble fact that nll this wes simply forgobien by the end of the

sage year. ‘Yhe U, S. high command in Washington certainly forgot this

% Some Ameyican naval historiaus smd strateglsts disagree with Dr. Morton
on this point; they inaist that the Jepanese Navy needed s spectaculay
victory~-the Ammy was getting too much publleity, and thet is why
Yemamoto insicted on the Pearl Harbor attack. It was not necessary for
their plans to take all that could be taken in Soukheast Asiel
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contingency; and the %o principal camsnders in Hsvail, by Deceuber 1941,
also apparently forgot itw-or did they lack the imagination that the
J&mmtoﬂayl%lmglmmnseﬂmtmuMmﬁhemmﬂm&the
Jspanese might doZ In Washington they were fhinking only of detervents
o Jepsnese expansion in the Foar Bush. They imagined that 83 long as the
Us 5. Pacific Fleet remained intact in the Pacific it would serve as a

deterrent %o Japanese moves towadd congwest in Southeast Asia, The
Jepanese attack Peerl Iixbor, {)ur greatest overseas bastion? How absurdl
Waghington, by Decembor 3.92&1, Just siwply could not imsgine that the
Japanese would bz foolhmxdy enough to attack Pearl Harbor and try to
destroy the ships of Pacific Fleet in their berthing positions in that
barbor. Except here and thlez-e» anmong the junlor officers of the Navy the
possibility of & surprise sir atback on the Fleet vas kepb in mind. “A
group of the younger officers (on the West Virginis) . . . anticipating
an alr attack on the Fleet, had discussed smong themselves what to do in

cagse 1% came, and kpew exactly how to ack.” (Morison, S. E. The rising
sun in the Pacific, Vol. IIT of Histoxy of United Giates Naval Overations
- in World Wer II, Little Brown and Co., Boston, 1953, p» 103). Their

foresight, ssys Prof, Morison, saved the West Virginia. To repest, it

is true thet this conﬁ.zwency about which I have already seld a good deal,
was explicitly stated in var plans.-but apparently nobody seriously
believed that it could be done, or that the Japanese would be so foolish
as o try it. Indeed, Prof. Morison says of the attack on Fearl Harbor:
(P, 132)
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Thus, the surprigse attack on Pearl Haxrbor, far from being
& "strategic necessity,” as the Japanese claimed even afber the
way, was a strategic imbecility. One can seayrch militery history
in vain for an operstion more fatal to the aggressor. On the
tactical level, the Pearl Harbor attack was wrongly concentrated
on ships rather than permsnent instellations and oil tanks. On
the strategic level it was idiotic. On the high political level
it wvas disastrous.
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b, WAS MAGIC WITHHELD FROM KIMMEL AND SHORT AND, IP SO, WHY?

We come not o enother very important question which has been yaised
in revisionis® mcles: ﬂhw' did not the commaunders at Pearl Harbor get
MAGIC; why did they not have the machines and facilities for deciphering
the Japanese highest level diplomatic communications, the so-called
Purple” crypto-system? Prof. Ferrell says: "The British and Genepral
MacArthwr received t)gg?mle decoding machines from Washington; why not
the commanders ab Pea;Z!. Harbor? (p. 225) This is a good question, and
not as foolish as it might be made %o appear by the usual answer that the
‘authorities in Washington couldn't prevent the Pearl Harbor attack, even
vith the code, so vhat vould Kimel and his Ammy opposite ab Havail,
Lieutenant General Walter C. Short bave done with it.”

let us agree that the mstimmedianotafgé%whonebmlet
us consider 1% in two parts, First, as %o vhy the Bﬂ.‘éish got the Purple
system, In the autwmn of 1940 U, 8. militery and naval suthorities on
the highest level agreed that there should and cowld be Some exchange of
intelligence between the U. 8¢ and the U, K. Included in the material to
be exchanged was commmication intelligemce. It wos ascertained that the
Us Ko comnmication intelligence experts had not succeeded in solving the
highest-level Japanese diplometic cryptosystem and the machine vhich was
involved in enciphering and deciphering the messages in that system.
[For, peventheticelly, hed the German experts./ Cryptaualysts of the
U. S Army's Simml Intelligence Service, however, hed accomplisbhed this
task and were reading the Japanese messages in hab cryptosystem, which
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they had named, for brevity as well as for disguise, the "Purple” gystem,
its predecessor, also & machine system, having been nomed the "Red”
gystem, On the other hand. it bad been ascertained that the U. K. crypte
anslysts ’ although they had been wmsuccessful with the "Pwrple” systenm,
had been quite successful vith certain German and Ttalien diplomatic
cryptosystems the study of which bed only vecently been undertaken by

Us S cryptenalysts. It therefore seemed that both the U. S. and U, K.
could profit by same sort of exchenge. A %ean of four cryptanalysts; %vo
from the Avmy and two from the Navy, wes sent o Iondon in Japuary of
1941 %o discuss the sechmicsl aspects of an exchange of material. 'The

U. §, team took with i% & recently-completed "Purple” machine and the

date necessayry to use 1t in deciphering the Japanese messages. I is

very important to wnerstand that the British had not only extensive
facilities for intercepbing and forwarding Jepancne diplomatic traffic

to ILondon but they also had a corps of very competent cyyptanclysés and
Japanese translators--without vhom possession of the "Purpls” machine
would have been of little or no values The British slso were eble $o resd
and translate other systems carrying Jepapese diplomstic traffice-oud they
did so not only in London but also at Singapore and Hong Kong, and poosibly
in omé or two other strateglc spots uwnder the British Crovn.

In the exchange of the "Purple” machine and informational details
concerning the Purple system for specific technical data on certain German
and Italien cryptosystems (principally diplomatic) both the U. S. apd the
U, K. gained advanteges of inestimsble value., On this pe&.n‘? there never
has been any doubt on eilther side, loreover, this exchange psved the vay
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t0 & later camplete U. 8. - Us Ko colleboration in cryptanalytic cpersa-
tions alter the U, &, entry into World War II as caue of the belligerents.
The velue of this collshoration can bariiy be overestimated Lub this
brochure will not Gesl with this sspect.

As long as we are dealing with the question aboub the U, 5. delivery
to the British of a "Pwrple” machine and the oryptosystem which used it,
we may well go into a relsted questiop concerning which iittle hus dbeen
said in the forrent of words about the Fearl Harbor disaster. The British
acquired the "Purple” in Januery 1941, and were sble from the very Dirvst
%0 uge ite-no strings were atbached to this usage, except thwt the secret
would be treated with the care that it deserved in order to keep Irom
enemy Xnowledge the fachk that ve hai scived it., (There have always been
very detailed and strict regulations governing the handling of cummunict-
tions inteliigence amd in tine the U. S. anc V. K. regulutions bectue
identical). The reason for mentioning that theve were no stricgs aitached
%0 the U, S. gift to the British is to forestall & revisionist allegation
that President Roosevelt must have permitied the gift to be mude only on
condition that no informution coming from “Puxple” would be used by the
British in o manner that would interfere with his conspirecy ¢ withhoid
from the two commanders ob Pearl Hurboy vhatever intelligence they might
obtain vhich would prevent the Japunese teking them by swprise, Such an
allegation would, of course, be sbsurd on its face--bubk then the revislon-
istes do not always srgue in a logical wanner. Exactly wiy the British
would, even iFf they could have agreed, o keep "Purple” intelligeace from
Shoxt and Kimmel is hard to understand. In the first place, although theze

|
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wBs ‘nn direct commmicatlon between these comsanders and the British,
certainly, there was communication between British and American intellli.
gence authorities in the Fap Eaat* In the second place, let it be noted
that the British hed been able %o read and were reading Japanese diplo~
matic systems other than Purple; in fact, wany of the messages which the
revisionists claim most definitely indicated thet s surprise air attack
was to be made st Pearl Haxboi* were in cryplosystems other than Purple.
For example, the sowcalled "bombing plot” message was not in "Purple”
at all bub in a eystem held by consulstes, a system designated by us as
J«19; and several other messeges related o the boubing plot message were
in the same systenm. |

What bas 41 the foregoing to do with the British? Simply this: de
1% concelvable thfa-'b the British, ‘oo, would have participated in 2 cone
spirscy of silence so a3 to let the Japanese destroy the U, 5. Pacific
Fleet, the fieet that was their principal protection against Japsnese
agression in the Far Esst? Haxdly. Is 1% not clear that the various
messages in Purple and in the other Japanese systems conveyed to the
British no definite atatement as o an impending attack on the Amerdcan
bestion in the Havaiian area? The British, let us remember, were then
supposed %o have the finest snd most carefully trained intelligence experts
in the world.: Is 1% likely that the detalled story of an impending attsack,
if vevealed by MAGIC, would have been completely overlooked by their
experts: Is it conceivable that they would, if they saw the outlines of
the story, have kept it to themselves? That they would have kept it from

theiy U, 8. friends? That they would have seen %o it that no word of it
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leaked to Short and Ximmsel? The British were counting upon the U, S. %o
orotect British inkerests in the Far East.

In the foregoing porsgraphs it was stated that certaln Japanese
nessages were long-delsyed in thelr processing inko plain English by the
Army and Navy cryptanalytic units. These delays were caused by several
things: (1) there were so many messages o be forwarded from U, S.
intercept stations that U, S. radio facilities were then not equal to
the task of carrying them all; meny had to be sent by air mail pouch or
even by ordimary U., S. Mail pouch; {2) there were so many messeges and
go few persons capable of processing them in Washingtone-let ws not forget
that & few dozens of persons in Washington were trying o keep up with
what hundreds, perhaps thousends, of Jspanese were doing in Japanese
message centers in Japsnese embossles, legations, and consulates all over
the world; (3) there were many times when it was impossible to solve a
new key until a sufficient amount of traffic had accunulated; (%) there
vere wany cases vhen ﬂegmﬁng & messege was stymled by errors in transe
mission oy interceptimg {5) there were only & handful of persons in
both the Army snd the Navy cmwwtm wnids who could transiate
Japanese~-and no pool in the U. é from vhich t:minea. and trustworthy
Japanese transliators could be gelected, as is the case in other forelgn
langusges such as French, German, Spanish, etc.; and wnbtil the Japanese
was converted into English, the messsges containing useful intelligence
gbout Japen might just as well be filed in the waste basket.

While we dwell upon the foregoing elements in the story it might be
2 good place to point out that a comspiracy to withhold information in
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order that en attsck might be carried out could hardly afford to risk
certain contingencies. For instance, 1t wonld be essential, would it not,
that & high degree of priority in processing be asccorded all Japanese
Govermment mesaages going o or coning from Hopolulu, sc that the allegg&
conspirators themselves might not be caught nspping? But it is 3 fact
that several very importsnt messages having a direct besring on the situa-
tion were not processed wntil seversl days after the nttack. The very
fact that the processing of all messages %o and from Honolulu was not
glven the highest or even & high priority itself constitutes an argument
agalnst the alleged conspiracy being objective—and not coupletely sub-
Jective,

. Let us now dake wp the question about the withholding of MAGIC from
Admirsl. Kimnel and General Shorbeas viewed by the highest level author-
itiela in Washirgton, First of all it is easy to admit the fact that the
eritical. MAGIC messages of the early autumm of 1941 and wp to the day of
the attack vere withheld from them; thers can be no question vhatever
about this fact. Bub the lwportent point is why? The revisionists say
that it was necessitated by the Hoosevelb-Harsball-Stark conspriscy to
bring about the atisck on the Fleet ab Pearl Harbor. A dispassionste
view, however, must take into consideration culte different end more
loglecal factors. E’irafb, as the Purple messages continued to be rezd in
Washington the styategic value of cur solubion of that cryptosysten
became incressingly spparent. This is a good place to insert what Geperal
Mexshall had to say on the subjech of the value of mlc » Vhich he describe
ed in detail in a highly sceret letter he wrote %o Covernor Dewey, &
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Republican, who hod learned about MAGIC (nobody imows how or from whom).

Marshall hed leoyned €hat Dewey was proposing o use this highly explasi.ye
information in the 1944 Hepublicen Presidential campaign egainst bﬁfowﬁh L
tern for Rrosevelt, The way was mob overd Hewe 4% is, in extenso:

Extracted £rom CONGRESSIONAL INVESIIGATION PEARL HARBOR ATTACK,
Part 3, pp. 11321133, B S

-y ?
[Lop,
For Mr. Dewey's eyes only. , 27 September 15Uk,

My dear Governor: Colonel Clarke, my wessenger to you of yzstere
day, September 26%h, hae reported the result of his delivery of my
letter dased September 25th. As I understand him you (&) were unwilie
ing %0 cammly yours=lf $0 any agreeuent regerding "not commumicating
its contents to any other pergon” in wiew of the fact that you felt
you alresdy knew certain of the things probably referred to in the
letter, as suggested to you by seeing the word "eryptogreph,” snd
(b) you could not feel that such & letber as this to s presidential
candidate could have been addressed to you by an officer in sy posie
tion without the knowiedge of the President.

As o (=) shove I am quite willing to have you resd vhat comes
hereafter with the understanding that you are hound not %o communi-
eate o any other person auy porkions on which you do not now have
or later receive factual knowledge from some other source than myseif,
As %o {b) above you have my vord that neither the Secretayry of Wax
nor the President has any intimetion vhatwoever that such 2 lettoy
has heen addressed to you or thak the preparation or seniing of such
& commmication was being considered. I assure you that the only
persons vho saw or kuow of Hlie existence of either this letter or my
letter to you dated September 25th are Admiral Xing, seven key
officers responsible for seouwrity of milivery commmications, end
ny secretary who typed these lettera. I am trying my best to make
piain to you thal this letier is belng addressed %o you solely on
my initiative, Aduiral King having been comsulted only after due
lebter was drafted, snd ¥ am persisting in the matter because the
military hazards involved are so serious that I Teel some action i
necessary 40 protect the interests of our armed forces.

I should have much proferved $o talk $o you in person btut I
could not devise a method that would not be subject o press and
radio reactions ag $o why the Chiel of Staff of the Army wowld be
seeking av interview with you at this particulsy momeu;. Therefore
I have turned 4o the methol of this letter, with which Admirel King

.
| 1
}
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concurs, to be delivered by hand %o you by Colonel Clarke, who,
incidentally, hes charge of the most secret documents of the War
and Navy Departments.

In brief, the militayy dilemma is this:

The most vital evidence In the Pearl Hurbor metter consists of
owr inkercepts of the Jepanese diplometic comsumicsbions. Over o
period of years our cryptograph people snalyzed the charscter of
the mechine $he Japanese were usipg for encoding thedr diplomitic
megsages. Based om this & corresponding machine was bullt by us
which deciphers dhelr messeges. Therelore, wo posiessed & woslth
of information regarding their moves in the ?acific, which in
turned vas fturnished the Stete Department--rotaer then s 15 ,

ly supposed, the State /FO0TE/S Department providing us vith

the informetion-<bud vhich wnlortupately wade po paferenss vhatover
to intentions towerd Hawail until the last message before December
’é};:g, which did mot yeach our kends unbil th: following dey, locodber

*

Now the point to the present dilemna is that we have goue abead
with this business of declpghering thelr codes undil we possess obloy
codes, Germen as well as Japanese, bubt our main besis of informstion
regariing Bitlerts intentions ln Burcpe is coblained frosn Badon
Oshima's messages from Berlin reporting his interviews with Hitler
and nther officials to the Japamesy Jovermmonk. These ape shill in
the codes involved in the Pearl Harbor events. ‘

To explain further the critical nature of this set«p which
wovld he wiped oub almost in 2o ingbant 1T the least susgicion wore
aroused regarding 1%, the battle of the Coral Sea was based on
decipheved meassges and theceofoys ouwr few ships werse in the right
place ab the right time. Further, we were able to concentyute owr
limited forces 4o meet thelr pavel advance on Hidwsy wvhen ctlexwise
we almost certalnly would have been same 3,000 miles out of place.
We had full information of the strength of their Jorcos in thut
advance and also of the smaller force directed against the Aleutlans
vhich finally lsnded tronps on Attu and Kisku.

Operations in the Paciflic are largely guided by the inforuation
we obtain of Japanese deployments. We kmow thelr strength in various
gerrisons, the ratiors and other stores continuing availsble to they,
and what is of vast importance we check their fleet movements snd
the moverments of thelr convoys. The henvy losses veported fram Liue
to time which they sustain by reason of our svbmsrine sobbdbon, largely
rvesult from the fact that we krow the deiling dobes wd poabes of
‘their convoys and can notify owr submerines to lle in vaiy at the
proper poiuts. .

he
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The current raids by Admiral Halsey's cayrier forces on Jepanese
shipping in Msuila Bay and elsewhere were largely based in timing on
the known movemenis of Japanese convoys, two of vhich were caught,
az anticipated, in his destructive attacks.

You will understand from the foregoing the utterly tragic con~
sequences if the present political debates regarding Pearl Harbor
disclose to the enemy, Germen or Jap, any susplcion of the vital
sources of information we possess.

The Roberts' report on Pearl Haybor had to have withdrawn from
it all reference to this highly secret matter, therefore in portions
i% necessarily appeared incomplete. The same reason vhich dicteted that
course is even more important todsy becsuse our sources have been
grestly elaborated,

~ [298TE] As snother example of the delicacy of the situstion,

some of Donovan's people (the 0SS) withowt telling us, instituted
& gecret search of the Japanese Enbassy offices in Portugal. As &

. result the entire military attache Japanese code all over the world
was changed, and though this occurred over a year ago, we have not
yet been sble to break the new colle and have thus lost this inval-
wible sowrce of Momtian, particularly regarding the Europesn
situation. -

A further most serious embarrassment is the fact that the
British government is involved concerning its most secret sources
of information, regarding which only the Prime Minister, the Chiefs
cof Staff and & very limited number of other officials have knowledge.

A recent speech in Congress by Representative Haxrmess would
clearly suggeast to the Japanese thet e have been reading their
codes, though Mr. Herness and the American public would probebly not
draw any such conclusion.

The conduct of Generasl Eisenhower's campaign and of sll pera-
tions 4n the Pacific are closely relsted in conception and timing
to the information we secretly obtain through these intercepted
codes, They contribute greatly to the victory and tremendously
to the saving in Americen lives, both in the conduct of current
operations and in looking towards the esrly termination of the war,

I am presenting this matter o you in the hope that you will sec
yowr way clesr to avold the tragic results with vhich we are now
threatensd in the m'eaent pal&tical campaign.

Please return this 1et€er by bearer. I will hold it in my most
gecret file subject to yom neferemé should you so desire.

; .’i i
Falthfully yam, .
: (Sgé.) G G JARSHALL,

e

L¥#]
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It seems to me that the foregoing letter goes & long way toward
answering the question 8s to why MAGIC vas withheld frem Kimmel end Short.
Stated briefly, the authorities in Washington wet‘e fearful that if MAGIC
continued to be sent them the gecret that we were able to read all their
diplamatic cryptocommmications, imeluding "Purple”, their most secure
system, would soon find its way to the Japanese. The whole of the island
of Oahu had thousands of Japanese mationals, among vhom it was natural
to assume there werewthere must have been-plenty of spies. The Amy
and Nevy asuthorities in Washington felt that it was becoming too danger-
ous %0 the continued secrecy of the fact that we had solved and were
reaﬁins nessages in Purple to send any more of the messages to Kimmel
and Short., Of coui'se they could have been sent some glsts--as had been
done in the first half of 194l--bul General Shermen Miles, the then
Aseistent Chief of Staff for Military Intelligence, stated before the
Joint Congressional Committee that sending even gists would have been
dangerous, by overloading the radio circuits; and he went on to say that
vhile the Navy cryptosystems could have been used, beqa.use they were
moye secure than the Army's, even that would not rem‘o;e the danger alto-
gether. /T will interject at this point the statement that Gemeral Miles
was not too well-informed on these practical matters, becmil © the Navy
had adopted and was using an Army cryptosystem and a mééi:ine invented by
Army persomnel!/ Both the Army and the Navy's cryptosystems could end
would have stood wp under the strain of sending all the important MAGIC
messages to Kimmel and Short and in extenso.
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But, insist the revisionists, the Navy furnished a MAGIC machine and
information on how to use it to the Commander of the 16th Naval Districtes
the Philippines, Why not to Kimmel and Short? There were very good
reasons for this; but at this point we shall merely ask: d4&id possession
of MAGIC prevent Ceneral MacArthur from being teken by surprise and losing
all his planes at one fell swoop more than 12 hours after the General knew

of the Japanese attack on Pearl Herbor? General MacArthur blames his

chief of the Army Alr Corps forces in the Philippines, CGeneral Brereton,
fo:.? being caught nspping; and Brereton blames MacArthur. Possession of
the Purple machine alone obviocusly wes not sufficlent.-the interpretation,
appreciation, and eveluation of MAGIC is Just es important. It might be
useful to quote what Genersl Willoughdby, MacArthur'’s G-2, said on this
latter point in an affedavit dated 8 May 1945 (PHR, Part 35, p. 87) in
protecting the Navy's monopoly of MAGIC:

In 1941 the Navy obtained and maintained & highly efficient
crypto-analytical service, specializing in Japanese material; though
the Army had notably participated in the development of this subject,
the Navy appears to have obtained & lead; conmsequently, it can be said
that the Navy enjoyed on almost monopolistic privilege. In an othere
wise meritorious desire for security (though every modern nation
knows that crypto-anslysis is going on), the Navy has shrouded the
vhole enterprise in mystery, excluding other services, and rigidly
centralizing the vhole enterprise. At this date, for example, this
seme system is still in vogue: as far as SWPA is concerned, the
crypto-analysis is made in Melbourne, forwarded via Tth Fleet D.N.I.;
the Melbournme station is under direct orders of Washington, is not
bound by any local responsidilities, forwards what they select, and
vhen it suits them. The possibility of erromeous or incomplete
selection 1s as evident now as it was in 1941, The only excuse the
Havy has is that its field is primarily naval intercepts, but there
is & lot of Army traffic or other incidental ¢traffic. This collateral
traific is not always understood or correctly interpreted by the Davy,
in my opinion.
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The solution to this vexing and dmngerous problem is & come
pletely Joint, inter-locking intercept and crypto-analytical
service, on the highest level, with the freest interchange of
messages and interpretation.

The sequence of messages referred to, had they been known
+o & competent intelligence officer, with Battle Crder and
tactical background, begimning with November lith, would have
led instantly to the inescapable conclusion that Pearl Harbor
naval installations were a target for attack, with November - -
25th or Hovenmber 29th as the deadlines, suggesting irreslsiibly
thet elapsed time was involved, for some sort of naval sesbhorne
surtie.

Ce A Willoughby,
C. A, Willoughdy,
Major Genem’ Gs 8. Cop
Assst.Chief of Staff, G-2;
General Headquerters, SWPA.
The fact is that skilled cryphenalytic help and skilled Japanese
traaslator# vere not in sufficient supply to permit either the Army or
the Navy to meintain many such people enyvwhere outside the U, S.-they
were badly needed in Washington. And besides, nobody thought or even
imagined that they were so badly nceded at Pearl Harbor as at Manile—
the Japanese would mever be so foolhordy as Yo attack Pearl! The U. 8.
Navy mxhhnrities believed that the Philippines might be cub off~dut not
Hawaii. Manila needed MAGIC much more than Peaxrl! That explains why
there was a Purple machine in llanile, more then anything else., The Navy
communications ;peraamel at Pesrl were assigned the mission of trying
desperately to solve thﬁ important Japenese naval cryptosystems apd to
get vhat information could be gleaned from traffic snelysis of Japanese
commnications; the Army had no signel intelligence oxr cryptanalytic
personnel &t all in Gawail aefter 1939--the very small unit it did beave
in SJonolulu was brought back to Washington after but one yesr's opera-

tions there~because the Pfew tralned persons of that unit vere fhought
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to be much more useful in Washington. Haewali seemed to be the last place
the Japanese would try to attack! Why keep the few trained cryptanslytic
personnel there vhen they could be so much more useful in Washingtcn?
What the Army had, therefore, was simply en intercept unit directed to
listen in on certain assigned Japanese circuits and vo forward the
trétfic to Weshington for study.

In this decision to bring back to Washingtom thet smell Army crypt-
analytic unit (two or three persons at most!) I am quite sure that the
Chief Signal Officer consulted no higher anthority--and, I am sure too,
the Commanding General of the Hawsiian Department at that time, Genersl
Short's predecessor, was glad ¢ get rid of the unit--its maintenance
caused him difficult logistical problems. The secrecy of its operations
certainly was a source of irritation to him and his staffethey never
got to see the results. The trained Signal Corps officer the Signal
Intelligence Service in Washington sent to Hawail in 1940 performed no
signal intelligence functions; by direction of the local commander he
was soon given "more necessary"” duties, such as devising asnd supervising
the leying of communication csbles in and around Honolulu. Ard with
this decision I can teke no exceptionesthe Commanding General on the
gpot knew best what he needed. I know for a fact that when the Signal
Corps sent & very small unit to Corregidor it was only with the greatest
difficuity that the Commanding General there was finally persuaded to
let the unit do what it was sent out to do--but only for a short time.
The members of any Signal Intelligence unit (Signal Corps persomnel) were
budly needed for ordinary Signal Corps functions. Washington could do
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very littie about this~the local comsander decided., In all that I have
said sbove, however, the most importent point by far wes, so far as
concerned both the Philippines and Hawaii, that an attack by the Japanese
was too fantastic to warrant much thought, so preparations for & possible
attack were somewhat negiected.
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5, THE "WINDS CODE MESSAGES"

Many thousands of words have been expended in discussing and writing
the story of the so«called "Winds Code Messsges,” and, in perticular,
vhether there vwere any authentic "Winds Code Execute" messeges.

There were two "Winds Code” sete-ups, which were intended, for reae
sons peculia.f to the Oriental mentellty, to give & certain kind of warm-
ing but just exactly what kind of e varning is unclesr because both of
these "set.ups” were, to say the least, ilupractical, indeed quite
foolish, becuuse they were so susceptible of being confused with ordie
nary weather and news broadeasts. And, indeed, this is exmetly what
d4d happen with regard to the one of most interest to the U, S. A weather
broadeast--now termed the false "Winds Code Execute” message was interw
cepted--and for a few houwrs at eny rate was taken to be the real thing.
But it wasn't "the real McCoy"ewit resembled what the Execute message
might have been but when carefully scrutinized it just didn't meet all
the conditions specified in the code instructions. The alerm it set off
subsided as soon es the discrepancies with what & real Execute should be
were recognized.,

I think that one thing ves established conclusively after exhaustive
investigation by several of the Pearl Harbor boasrds, including that of
the Joint Congressional Committee: +the Japanese never did send out an
authentic "Winds Code Execute” message vhich clearly indicated that Japan
was going to attack the U, §. If indeed the Foreign Ministry intended to
transmit such & messsge it was forgotten at the lust moment; and even if
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it hed not forgotten, the most the message could have conveyed was that
there was going ¢o be & breask in relations between Japan and the country

signified by the particular "Winds Code Execute” message. The other
thing which scems to be certain is that having forgotten to send out the
"Exccute” meaning a break between Japan and the U. S., scmebody seems to
have remembered to send out after the attack on Pearl Harbor a "Winds
Code Execute” signifying that Jepsn was breaking relations with Britain
but not with the U,83.8.B. Even this one the Japanese who were interro-
geted efter the surrender of Japan denied having trunsmitted but all the
evidence I have examined indicates that they were not telling the truth.
One might say, if they didn't tell the truth about that one we shouid not
put any credence in their cenial that a "Winds Code Execute” wus sent out
on 3 Deceulier, the one indicabing o bresk in relations (or war) with the
U. 8. Certain of the Japanese interrogated on the point denied ever
getting wp the "Winds Code" in the flrst place. This point is examined
in great detail in Appendix E ¢o PER, pu. 46T-486 end there is consummate
gkill in this examinstion. The PIR arrived at the following conclusion,
vhich I think represents the last word that can be saild on this subject
(Pc 1&86):

CONCLUSION: From consideration of all evidence relating to
the winds code, it is concluded that no genuine message, in
execution of the code and spplying to the United States, was
received in the War or Navy Department prior to December T, 194l.

It appesrs, however, that messeges were recelved which were
initially thought possidbly to be in execution of the code but
-were determined not to be execute messages. In view of the pre-
ponderate weight of evidence to the contrary, it is believed that
Captain Safford is honestly mistaken vhen he inddsts that an
execute message was recelved prior to December 7, 1941, Cone |

sidering the period of time that has elapsed, this :nis‘baken
impression is understandable.
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Granting for purposes of discussion that a genuine execute
message applying to the winds code was intercepied before Dece
ember 7, it is concluded that such fact would have added nothing
to vhat was already known concerning the criticsl character of
our relations with the Empire of Japan. ,

This conclusion z'eache&. in 1946 remains unsheken to this daye~-noth
ing has twned up o wmake a change in it desiyable, so far ss concezus
any “Winds Code Execute” messege that might have been transmitted on
3 December, as Captaio Safford contended. One could only wish that the
conclusion had stated categorically thet there wes such 8 mescage iu
regard to a break in relations bebtween Japsn snd the Lrdtish {(end alsc
the Dutch East Indies) because the evidence is clear theb such & slgnal
was sentbut then, by that time, 5 December, the sttack on Pearl Herbor
was finished.

The "revisionists,” bowever, stlll believe in Cepiaiu Safford--the
sole person who stuck to his statement that there wag & 3 Decenber warne
ing, and that all coples of that nusssége vere deliberately destroyad.
The interesting thing sbout this vhole tempest-in-S-bespot is thet even
if there hed been an authentic U. 8.-Jdupan execute message it would have
%0ld us nothing whatever that was%gxeuﬁar known on 3 Decewber, Noreover,
and this 3 think is very importast, the shiack on Pearl vas prevered for
vith so much secrecy I would doub¥ very wuch tiet the Japanese would take
any chence whatever in sending out a messege which might "tip their hand®.
It Just doesn'® F1it in the picture at alil.

it is interesting to note that Admirai Ximmel, while he meutions
the "Winds Code" affair and cites (p. 100} what the Naval Couwrt of

Inguiry said sbout it-lster proved to be wronge-dces not press the
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matter to seriously. I think the Admiral is very dubious that a real
Execute vas ever sent out on 3 December as claimed by Captain Sefford,
although he does say (p. 101): "The £indings of the Navel Court, of
Inquiry on this subject are confirmed by the evidence preséntedv %o the
Joint congressionel investigating committec." The Admiral does not
state specifically what the "findings" were but the reader is left to
conclude that the committee found that there was an Execute transmitted
on 3 December and that it was intercepted by us-but the information was
not transmitted to him or to other commanders afloat. .

Senntors Ferguson and Brewster in their Minority Report éay (p. 526):
"Even if the wind execute message they saw was & false one they believed
it true at the tvime and should have acted sccordingly.” A good point, and
I think, one that should be emphasized; it 1s too bad it wasn't followed
up regardless of euy other considerations.
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6. THE QUESTION CF SABOTAGE

What led General Short to prepare for ssbobtege rather then for
militory sction by the Jepaneae?

In my opinion the reason for General Short's very Lrief answer to
the war wvarning message sent him after the 26 November 1941 American
rejoinder to Japanese proposels for arriving ab & modus vivendl was not,

a8 many people believe, utter nonsense., Short said merely that he wvas
prepered for schotage. The facht is that everybody in Washington and,
apparently, also in Homolulu had but two things in mind as to posasible
or probeble Japanese acktion. First, the Japapese merch was certainiy to
be to the southward {to Melaya, Thailaend, Indo<Chine, Borneo, or the
Dutich East Indies; indeed all their actlons seemed %o point in those
directions) and Short was not able to do anything at all about thet.
Then, secondly, there was incessant talk in America, including in the
radio broadeasts apd in the writings of columnists, ssbotage was what
ve had %o guard sgeinst. The generally~held view was that the Japanese
were tricky, that attempts to thwart heir march would be countered by
the various mechaniems of gabotege. This I zemember very vividly. And
I feel sure that vhen General Gerow received General Short's message
stating that all steps to prevent sabotage had been teken and that he
'm in liaison with the Navy, Genersl Gerow probebly thought "Fine
busineags~Short 's on the Job.” So must have the others in Weshington
vho saw it--General Marshall included. By hindsight Short's message

~ Beems entirely mmresponsive to the message sent him. Bubt the matter of

' !
!
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sabotage was in the air. That's what we had to look out for. Confirma-
tion of this attitude can be seen in va.rious messages. Even the Navy's
strong message beginning "rhis dispatch is $o be considered & war warning”
ends with "Continental D!isisricts Guan Samos directed to take appropriate
messures against sabotage.” Everyhody had forgobten all sbout the war
plan of May 1641 which envissged as the first and most dsngerous cone
%ingency a swrprise alyr attack on the Fleet &b Pearl Harbor. Parenthe-
tically I may add that those whose memories of World War I included the
two great acts of sabotage by German agents in this country (the Black
Tom explosion and the Kingsland Fire) before the U, 5. became a belligerent
in that war will perhaps sgree with me that Japancse gabotege was the
thing Americans thought m‘mat t0 be feared in regard to American
territory. Let us no% forget that this fear quickly expressed itself
ve?y clearly and heartlessly in whst was done %o thousands of Japanesec-
American citizens (including Nisei) in California the moment we declared
vayr on Japen. Why did they move them ocut of the port cities? What were
the authorities afraid of? Sabotage! For this reason I, for one, find
1% Aifficult to criticlze General Gerov in his handling of General Shorb's
message in response to the 26 ﬁovember message from Washington.

But what about the views held by U. S. intelligence authorities om
this question of ssbotage? Were they the same &s those of the average
American citizen, "the man<inethe-street™ I think they were--and Jjust
a3 the views of "the man-in-the-street” of those days wewe wyong, so it
seems vere the views of owr intelligence authorities. Why? Becsuse we
never have paid too much attention ¢o intelligence. After several
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thousands of yeers of experience, why do military and neval authorities
seem %0 pay less attention to intelligence than ¢o logistlcs, for instance?
Why does intelligence have to play the role of step-child in the conduct
of warfere? What is there about intelligence that makes it less desirable

as & career than artillery, for example? The reasons sye clesy when one
locks into the matter. |
Admiral Theobald lays great emphasis on Tokyo to Honmolulu message
nuber 83 of 24 September 1941 (the sowcalled “RBambing Plot Message™")
and says (p. 46):
After studying Tokyo dispatch 783, no military intelligence
orgenization could fail to reach that deduction /that 1t vas o

prepare the detailed plan for & surprise attack on the major
units of the Fleet moored there/.

Here I think 1z the kemmel of the nubethe gecret of why the U, S.
vas takien by surprise. I have waderlined the phrase "no military intelli.
gence organization” in he foregoing extract because I think that owr
nilitery and naval intelligence orgenizations hed serious defects st
that time-wond I think they still have. {(Thecbald does not mean justh
military, U. 5. Army Intelligence, but also U, i5. Navy Intelligence,)

I think that serious defects in owr military and pavel intelligence made

it possible for the Japanese to take us by surprise at Pesrl Harboy.
A strong statement? Yes, but I think it is varrantef, I will with some
aiffidence go into this question becsuse T do nok kmow oo much shout
the situation as of 1957. I 444 know what it was like in 1940kl and
in 1950, fowr years after the PHR wac relessed. It is clear that tho
intalligence situstion in the U. 5. wes defective in 1940441 and in
1950, when the Koresn "police petion” broke out without vamins. Where
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were our intelligence services then? What were they doing or thinking
gbout? By 1950 we hed CIA. What help was CIA?

Four yeays after the PIR was released, Major Genersl Shermsn Miles,
Asgistant Chief of Staff for Intelliigence of the War Department General
Staff, from April 1940 o Februayy 1942, in vwhat some people may regard
&s an apologia, hes mapy things to say in an endeavor o explain what
appesy %o have been derelections of himself and his staffs It ves en
attempt %o absolve G-2 from its responsibility for the debacle on 7
December 1041, For the most part he does as good a Job of this, perbans,
as could be done %o exculpate G«2 from its fallures, omissions, and lack
of the kind of imagination which might have foreseen and forestalled the
disaster caused by the Japunese swprise attack. A salient paragraph
among many which could be quoted is the following (p. T1l):

The plain fack is that the war warnings sext out by the
highest military authorities nine dsnys and move before Pearl

Harbor were far more asuthoritative and more definitive of what

the Hawaiien comands might ecpect, and vhat wes expected of

them, than any information or interpretations from ‘magic”

that Militsry or Navael Intelligence could possibly have sent.

Complete reliance was placed on the effect those waymings

should have bad--and did have everyvhere except 1ln Hawali.

But Tokyc apparently believed thet the incredidle might

happen and Hawall be surprised: Washingtoun did not.

GCeneral Miles takes 1% for granted that the warnings sent out by
Washington properly alerted all owr overseas commands except the one in
Hawall, One wonders abouk the basis for the Gemeral's asmumption in
this regard. Indeed, in one case, already mentioned, even 12 hours after

General MacArthur in the Fhilippines knew that the Japsnese had made the

1~ "I’earlﬁﬁarbor in wetrospect” inm the Ablentic Monthly for July i9hd,
Dp. O5-T2,
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surprise attack et Pearl Harbor his command wes nevertheless taken
completely by surprise, when the Japanese destroyed all his planes on
the ground, just as they did in Hawail. General Miles, notwithstanding
his statement that (p. 70):

“The Hawaiian commends later complsined that this "magic”
information was not transmitted to them~~this in spite of their
failure to react to the authoritative warning orders sent them
when the situation was commonly known to be far more critical.

By comparison, it may be noted that General MacArthur, who hed

access to "magic,” could not later identify the more important

"magic"” messeges; he apparently took no action on them, but

alerted his command for war on Washington's warning orders.

Thus assumes that General MacArthur "slerted his command for war on
Washington's warning orders.” What does "alerting” mean, anyhow, if a
commander loses all his planes by what I think was inattention?

General Miles edmits (pp. 70-71) that "there were two "MAGIC"
messages ... wvhich have subseduently been held ¢o have been signposts,
had we so read them, to Pearl Harbor." The General devotes many words
to these two cases and concludes that the signposts pointed to & halfe
hearted proposal, edmittedly discussed in Washington, that the British
and U. S. cccupy the Netherland Indies before the Jepanese did sowand
he thus tried to explain away the femous clue contained ir a Tokyo messege
%o Berlin telling General Oshimm, the Japanese Ambassador to Germany, to
tell the Cermans: "Say very secretly to them that there is extreme
danger that war may suddenly bresk out between the Anglo-Saxon nations
and Japan through some clash of arms, and add that the time of the break-
ing out of this war may come quicker than anyone dresms.” The explanae

tion of }Mlles (or, better perhaps, the lack of imagination) cn the part
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of U. S. intelligence agencies appears to me {(even by hindsight, of course)
to be pretty thin.

Here are two more paragraphs from General Miles' article, both of
which I thinik ere of considerable significance: |

The last twenty-four hours in Weshington before the bombs
fell have come in for much scrutiny. Why did the Presldent,
with most of the Japanese final answer before him, conclude
thet it meant war and then, after a fitful attempt to reach
Admiral Stark by telephone, quietly go to bed? Why was he
in seclusion the following morning? Why was no actlion teken
on the Japanese yreply by the Secretaries of State, War, and
Navy when they met on that Sunday morning? Why did they not
consult the President, or he send for them? Where was every-
body, including my humble self? Why, in short, didn't someone
stage a last-minute rescue, in good Western style?

The picture undoubtedly is one of men still working under
the pasychology of peace. They were, to quote Secretary Stimson
again, "under & terrific pressure in the face of & global war
which they felt was probably imminent. Yet they were sur-
rounded, ocutside of thelr offices and almost throughout the
country, by & spirit of isolationism and disbelief in danger
which now seems incredible.” They were men who thought they
had done their possible to prepare for impending war, and who
hed no idea that there was an innocent maiden in need of rescue,

I will edd another extract that may be helpful in seeing things in
what I regard as their proper lieh'{t;. This extract comes from Secretary
Stimson's statement with respect to the report of the Army Pearl Harbor
Board, repeated as a footmote (p. 239) to the PHR: |

As expressed by Mr. Stimson: "“A keener and more imaginative
appreciation on the part of some of the officers in the War and
Ravy Departments of the significance of some of the information
might have led to a suspicilon of en attack specifically on Pearl
Harbor. I do not think that certain officers in the War Depart-
ment functioned in these respects with sufficient skill., At all
times it must be borne in mind, however, that it is easy to
criticize individusls in the light of hindsight, and very diffi.
cult to recreate fairly the entire situation and information with
which the cfficers were required to deal at the time of the
event.” See statement of the Secretary of Wer with respect to
the report of the Army Pearl Harbor Boerd, comnittee exhibit
No. 157. i

|
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My own explanation of the failures and derelictions of U. 8. intelli-
gence can be stated in few voide: I do not think there were no imaginae
tive officers in G-2 or in Naval Intelligence; but more important there
was nobody in either the Army or the Navy intelligence staffs in Washington
vhose most important, if not sole duty, was to study the whole story vhich
the MAGIC messages were unfolding and vhich played so importeat a part in
our failure to deduce that the Japanese were planning a surprise sttack on
the U, 8. Fleet at Pearl; there was nobody whose responsibility it was to

try to put the pieces of the Jig-sew puzzie together. Certainly there

was nobody in the Army's Signal Intelliigence Service who wes assigned to
oi avallable for this purpose--even if the responsibility for this sort
of work had been fixed on that organizetion, which it wasn't. This was
likewise true of the equivalent Navy organization. This important phase
of intelligence was & responsibility which in both services was Jealously
held by the Intelligence staffs. And the distribution of the MAGIC
messages was so rigidly controlled that there was nobody in either of
these Intelligence steffs whose duty it was to study the messages from

& long-range point of view. The persons, officers and civilians, in
intelligence, as well as in the White House, hud the messsges only for so
short & time that cach message representecd only a single frame, co to
speak, in a long wotion pidiwe filum—e £ilm which should have beer shown
and should have been luteatly studied ag a conbinucus series of pictures,
because they were telliung & story. Dubt the film was simply not there to

be studied and this was & very serious weskmess, I think, in the intefli-

gence organizations of the two Services. It msy have becn that they
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simply did not have the people to devote to such work.

0f course, there are those critics who point to the message which
Navy Ceptain McCollum testified that he thought shouid be sent to Admirsl
Kimuel, and to the one which the Army's Colonel Saatler testilfied that Le
thougnht should be sent to General Short. They, it seemed, sensed that
MAQIC was telling & story and was pointing toward a surprise atitack, the
most likely terget being Pearli Harbor. But both etfyorts came up against
stone walls-—their supperior officers claimed enough hed been sent to put
Kimmel and Short on full alert: To send more would only confuse them,
or worse than that, irritate them. But the latter were ocbviously wrong-—
or so it seems to us now--again by the aid of hindsight. Admirals Theobald
and Kimmel have made the most of this failure on the part of those above
Captain McCollum and Colonel Sadtier to realize how inadequate the warnings
that had been sent to Short and Kimmel really were.

The Joint Congressional Committee (Majority Report) clearly felt that
what Kimmel and Short were sent by way of information left much to be
desired. One thing seems certsin, as I bave already sald: the lntelli-
gence arrvangements in both Services were inadequate. The Commitiee reached
certain conclusions and made but Tive mejor recommendetlons, the second of
which is as follows:

That tnere bhe a complete integretion of Army and Nevy
intelligence agencies in order to avold the pitlalis of divided
responsibility which experience has made so sbundantly apparent;
that upon effecting & unified intelilgence, officers ve selected
Por intelligence work who possess the background, penchant, and
capacity for such work; and thet they be maintained in the work
for an extended period of time in order that they may befome

steeped ip the ramiflcations and refinements of their Jieid snd
employ this reservolr of knowledge in evaluating materisl recelved.
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The assigpment of an officer having an aptitude for such work

should not impede his progress nor affect his promotions.

Efficient intelligence services are Just as essential in tine

of peace as in wvar, and this branch of ouwr armed services must

always be accorded the important role which it deserves.

What hes been done sbout this recammendstion by the Services? Very
little; in fact, I think {t can be seild that nothing hes been done. Of

course, we have the Central Intelligence Agency; but is that establishment

really responsive to the Joint Committee's recommendation? I hardly

think so. The three services no doubt can cite good reasons why they

have not made a ﬁi%fegsion&l career in intelligence possible or attractive

to its officer persomnel; no doubt they can cite at length factors and

difficulties that would have to be overcome., All I can say is that Judg-

ing by vhat the Army has done the attitude toward intelligence seems not

%0 have changed very much, as is indicated by the following editorial

which sppeared in the Washington Post on 5 December 1955 end which states

the cese in suceinct terms:
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. ‘»‘Dh')f’
Snub to Intelligence S5,, o

The recent reorganization in the Army General
Staff leaves the Military Intelligence Service in an
ambiguous and rather humiliating position. Al-
though directors of the other major staff divisions
have been designated as Deputy Chiefs of Staff
with the'rank of lieutenant general, the Chief of
Intelligence remains a major general with the sub-
ordinate title of Assistant Chief of Staff.

The extraordinary thing about all this is that not
long ago the special task force which investigated
the intelligence problem for the Hoover Conimis-
sion strongly recommended that in the case of
those units associated with the three armed services
their chiefs “be evaluated in the organizational
structure to level of Deputy Chiefs of Staff in the
Army and Air Force, and Deputy Chief of Naval
Operations in the Navy.” This was a rather
prolix way of saying that they ought to have a
little more prestige and influence, along with a
little more gold braid, than they now enjoy. Why,
in the case of all three services, was this recom-
mendation ignored by the Department of Defense?

The chief function of military intelligence is to
collate and inferpret the information provided by
the attaches abroad and by other agencies, such as
‘the CIA, the FBI and its own counterespionage
service. Correct interpretation requires more than
the accumulation of relevant facts; it also requires
a considerable knowledge of the psychology of the
potential enemy, and this in turn requires an
extensive study of his language, history, culture,
customs and philosophic tradition, since these
afford the keys to such an understanding. But all
this, together with the secrecy in which their activi-
ties are necessarily cloaked, seems to have made '
intelligence officers somewhat suspect to -a certain
sort of politician. Even professional military men
are often inclined to discount the vilue ‘of the
critical function exercised by intelligence officers
in the discussion of pet military projects or pians.

The question raised by the reorganization is
whether we can realistically expect to increase the
quality of military intelligence by deemphasizing
its significance. It is hard to see how a career in
intelligence can be made to appeal to capable offi-
cers when the importance of intelligence is so
obviously downgraded in comparison with other
staff functions,
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High~-level Army ‘au‘bhorities obvicusly don't think that Intelligence
is as important as Persomnel, Supply, and similar services. How long
- will it teke before it becomes quite clear to them that Intelligence can
be of the greatest help in fighting & war? For too meny years intelli-
gence in the Army and in the Navy hes been & "deadend” for officers who
showed an interest in it, or an aptitude for it. Is this to continue
indefinitely? Do the Armed Forces think that the Central Intelligence
Agency will or can do the Job? Of course, CIA representatives can be
assigned to the headquarters of military commandswbut will that £ill the
need? I doubt 1t, I doubt it very much.

The introductory statement of the "Sypervisory, Administrative, and
Orgentzational Deficiencies in ouf Military and Navel Estsblishments
revealed by the Pearl Harbor Investigation” (p. 253) the PHR begins as
follows: |

The Committee has been intrigued throughout the Pearl Harbor
proceedings by one enigmatical and paramount question: with
some of the finest intelligence available in our history, wi
the almost certain knowledge that war was at hand, with plans that
contemplated the precise type of attack that was executed by
Jepan _on_the morning of December [-—Why was it possible for &
Pearl Harbor to occur? The answer to this question and the
causative considerstions regurded us naving suy ressonebly pro-
ximate bearing on the disaster have been get forth in the body
of this report. Fundementelly, these consliderations reflect
supervisory, administrative, and orgesnizational deficiencies
which existed in our Military and Haval establichments in the
days before Pearl Harbor. In the course of the Committee's invest«
igation still other deficiencies, not regeyded as having a direct
bearing on the dissster, have presented themselves. Otherwise
stated, all of these deficiencies reduce themselves 4o principles
vhich are set forth, not for their novelty or profundity but for
the reagon that, by their very seli-evident simplicity, 1t ic
difficult to believe they are ignored.
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It is recognized that meny of the deficiencies revealed by
owr investigation may very probably have already been corrected
s a result of the experiences of the war. We desire, however,
to submit these principles, vhich are grounded in the evidence
adduced by the Committee, for the consideration of our Army and
Navy establishments in the earnest hope that scmething construce
tive way be accomplished that will aid our nationsl defense and
preclude a repetition of the disaster of December 7, 19kl. We
do this after careful and long consideration of the evidence
developed through one of the most important investigations in

the history of the Congress. |

What have the Services done o smeliorste the deficiencies mentioned?
In my opinion, very little. Maybe it would be correct to ssy "nothing.”
As a collesgue sald to me recently "Nothing will be done--until war bresks
out. Then, of course, intelligence ia no longer treated a step~child.”
Is that what we want? The chances are that there won't be time to use
intelligence after o war breaks out: maybe the U. S. will be down snd
out by that time.




REF ID:A485355

7. CONCLUBIONS

After reading some but not all the millions of words alluded to at
the beginning of this brochure to what conclusions have I arrived? I will
be brief.

First, I must confess, I think that Kimmel and Short were not as cule
pable es I Pirst thought they were back in 19L1.1942, despite all the
"waynings” sent them. The Washington a;xthoﬁties were culpsble, 00w
meybe & lot more culpsble than were these two officers. Both the Majority
and the Minority Reports mske good sense: The Report of the Majority
contained some very pertinent recommendatiaﬁswu‘b nobody geems to be doing
very much about implementing the second and perhaps the moﬁ%?iizse
recomendstions; nor hes much, if snything, been done sbout following up
on the Conclusions of the Minority, Senators Ferguson and Brewster. In
1946 I thought the latter two senators were "hitting below the belt® but
today, in 1957, I think they hit closer 4o the truth than the Majority.

I think Mr. Keefe's "additional views" on the iajority Report make good
senge-~Kimmel and Short, he said, were not the sole culprits. I think
thaet the Intelligence Services came off rather easily--too easily in the
Tixing of responsibility end pointing out derelictions. I think the
intelligence staffs might have used more imagination dut this was not
because they were staffed with obtuse officers or persoms of low-grade
intelligence. As a matter of cold fact, I think, they were bedly under-
staffed, bocause in both the Army and the Navy "intelligence” didn'¢

count-for much at any rate, then. This raises the question: does it
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count for much more today in the Ammed Services? I think that Kimmel and
Shart_ should have been sent more informationw-even if they were sent only
"gistas" of MAGICwto let them evaluate for themselves the significance of
vhat the Japenese were saying. Ceneral Miles says that the warning
messages sent them were of far more iwmportsnce than anything they could
have got from "Magie”. I don't agree. They might have had more time to
runinate; they might even have guessed-as Admiral Kimmel hints--what the
Japanese were planning; our commands might therefore have been much more
prepared than they were to meet ‘thé attack. This, one must admit, could

have been done evep without their having & Purple machine or & crypt-

analytic staff to solve and trenslate messages in thed or in the other
Japanese diplometic systems.

I think that Admiral Stark was wrong in waiting for General Marshsll
to be found before sending off a message to Kimmel and Short--and to the
other overseas commanders~-a8s socn as the lést part of the lh-part .fl‘olwo
to Washington message became avallablee-egpecially vwhen he knew from
“Magic” that Kurusu and Nomwa were told exectly to the minute when %o

present the whole message to Seeretary Hull., (Thet we knew the contents
of the last part of that message [Mdeliver this whole message exactly
at 1:00 p.m.”] before the Japanese Embassy code clerks hed them is a
eredit to the efficiency of Army and Navy cryptanalytic staffs.)

I think that Colonel Edward French, Chief of the Signal Corps Messege
Center, used very poor Jjudgment when he sent Marshell's message via
ccmerciel radio. He could have used FNavy radioc or FBI rediow-but I am
sure he thought it was infra dig to ask & "sister" goverament radio
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service (especially the Navy) to do (st a critical moment) something that
Army radio couldn't do. Or maybe Cclonel French didn't realize the gravity
of the situstion, or was not told so in impressive enough language.

The Ferguson-Brewster Minority Report does not point the finger at
all the high renking officials who should share the responsibility but
it does say (p. 573) "Both in Washington and in Hawaii there were mumerous
and serious failures of men in the lower eivil and military echelons to
yerform thelr duties snd discharge thelr responsibilities. These are too
numerous to be treated in dem and individually named.” I would have
liked them to have named the Directors of Intelligence in the Army and in
the Navy, specifically, because I think poor intelligence work plsyed such
& large part in the debacle,

And, of course, although it is clear that MAGIC was withheld from
Kimpe). and Short after the swmmer of 1341, I do pot think (and of this I
am quite sure) that it was deliberately withheld for the specific purpose
of bringing on the attack at Pearl! Except for the most rzbid of the
revisionists this s oo fantastic o thesis; but there is & stronger

argument against such a thesis: 1% is not supported by the facts.

&7
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8. EPILOGUE

What was it that so aroused the anti-Rooseveltians, leading them to
suspect thet it vas "akullduggery” and gross negligence in Weshington
that was responsible for the Pearl Rarbor maastér?

Wby did the President, his closest assoclates in the White House,
and the officers in the bop-level positions in the Army and in the Havy,
generate so mh suspicion in the minds of the Republicans? Why such
reluctance to have an investigation to explain why the U. 8. farces were
esught by surprise at Pearl Harbor? This is & point which I do not {think
is explained in the literature and which ought to be. Why did the Fresie-
dent and his admialsiratlon allow so much suspiclon $o grow up in the
minds of the Republicans by the questlons which the latter raised after
7 Beaeﬁher 1941 and which they continued %o raice throughout the war?
Could this have been avolded? I% is my opinion that it was this refusal
- %o explain, this sub.jéctﬁ.on to continued "needling” of the President and
the Democrats by the Republicans throughout the wer that syoused the
gravest snspiciong that there was lndeed gross negligence in the White
House and a% the highest executive levels, cud maybe greater derellctions
to be hidden., The adamsnt resistance the President and the Demoeratic
" Administraticon had to meintain against fepublican pressure for (ongress-
ional heaxings on this polot aud the reesons therefor were gquite cbviocus:
we now know that such hearinge would have "let the cat out of the vag" e
that the U, 8. was reading all the Japeancse crypto-commnications between
the Foreign Office snd its embassies, legetions, and consulates 2broed.
The Japasnese would heve chenged their Purple system without delay. It
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is inconceivable, the Administration believed, that the secret could h#ve
been kept even if sll the hearings vere in Executive Sessions. They felt
and were varranted in feeling that Hearings on the subject would be dis~
astrous during the ’war: %00 much vital information on the subject mu?.d.
have leeked oub. It s true that the Japanese had been alerted during
the var by the Cermans; they were told, in fact--and ncbody knows to this
day Jjust bow the Germans found out«-that we were reading Japanese diplo-
matic messages. All this appears in the PHR and makes interesting reading.
But it is sstonishing that even after they were told the Japanese Just
simply refused to believe the story and continued to use the Purple
system., (Neither, for that matter, did the Germans put much credence in
the sugpicions, forwarded by Marshel Rommel fram Africa, that the British
must be reading his messages; Rommel felt t¢hat this and only this could

account for his continuing defeats in North Africa after 1943! Have these
tvo episodes any lesscons for us? Yes, indeed! Cryptographers become
ensnored of their luventions and their minds become polarized in a sort
of conviction SR that the systems they have concocted are invineible.
It heppened to us, too! I can remember the mentel shock I had vhen
indubitable evidence was placed before me showing that the Germans were
reeding the enciphered code system we were using for commmications between
U. S. Army Observer vith the Britich Expeditionery Forces in North Africa
in 1942-3 and Weshington! That is why I believe that some bodye-experts,
of couwrsee-~cutside the one that thinks up and produces our own cryptos
systems but within NSA should be called in frequently to take a good look
at those systems %o make sure that some crack in the strong cryptosecurity
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edifice the NGA cryptographers think they have erected doesn't exist and
that such & crack can not be widened. |
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LAVOICE

iirector

Botional Security Agency

Vaghiagton 25, 0. C.

Attention: Contancting Officer, HGA

In accordance with Article I1 (selivery) om Contrect lo.
ARG L TO-8c 1739, File No. 65:-H5A=55, 50084,/PR-2T0,
this invoice is submitted for peyment

[ E N R XN "A,&X}-w

CERTD ICATE

1 certify thet the above bill 1s correct and Just and that
payment therefor has not been recelved.
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Uirectoy

Hational Qw.wiw Agency

Twm 353 4 C¢

Attn: Chief, Central Uffize of Deference

Sins

teference is asde to Contract No. DANGLT0-gc=l739, File Ho. Fe-llah~52,
SO=NGR, PR«270, which was entared into as of 1 August 1955 by and between the
United states of America and the undersigoned and vhich wes modified only as
to date of delivery of all the items called for under said comtract. in
accordoxce with the provisions of Article IT (Delivery) of said contract, I
om sending you herewith (a) spproximetely 150 ow cards supplementery to
those sent wnder Project 1, Article I, paragreph (1) of said contract; and
{u) the completed menuseript called for under Project 3 of the same Article,
vize, & gpeciel report arizinally tentatively entitled ’i‘he %w%m

: mwmvmmﬂcmzm%mtheA ck on Peerl

. said tentative title of the or under Project 3 is
now not quite suiteble and I have deemed it adviseble to amend it by prefac-
ing it vith the words "Certain aspects of ‘Jdagic'”, making the complete title

‘Certain aspects of 'sgic' MWCWMOS?M various
Investigantions into on remr.

I nave adopted & ruther infomel style which wsy perheps make the biu~
chure more interesting. ocveral ideas therein cast a new light, I think, on
certain aspects of the investigations and the questions raised by & cetegory
of historians who bave much to say about the sttack on Pearl Hurbor and who
are known a8 ‘revisionists.” My brochure may therefore be useful in & study
of the Pearl Herbor . .saster, especially for historians who take & more
realistic view of vhat heppened anl why the U. 3. forces in Hawali were
caught by surprise. It is perhaps unfortunate thet I had to use a small
amovnt of material which is s%ill clessified and therefme the brochure as
& whole bas had to be clasaified.

I realize only too well that the presest brochure can certainly be
zproved by further work but the time linite-siready twice extended--permits
of no additiooal delsmy in the delivery of this item. Let it be considered,
in the words of the previous ‘irector of the lational Security Agency, as
"Model ¥o., 1.7

Sincerely,

R AR SR A S B o < N T Y &

DTN B PR S
ES o ow T »
& Inclis:
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